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This Annual Report to Shareholders contains projections and other
forward-looking statements regarding future events or the future
financial performance of the Company. Actual events and results
may differ materially from those in the projections and other
forward-locking statements set forth herein. See the additional
cautionary statements in the accompanying Form 106-K (under
"Contents® on page 2, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” on page 10 and
“Forward-Looking Information” on page 31).




PRESIDENT’S LETTER

To Our Shareholders,

Review of 2006

Frankly, the net financial results for 2006 are d1sappomt1ng The Company had a net loss
for 2006 of $836,000, or $.51 per share, compared to net income for 2005 of $132,000,
$.08 per share.

Premiums and other considerations were down 12% in 2006 as con{pared to 2005.
While, as discussed below, we have had promising progress in our marketing initiatives
in the final expense life insurance and group ancillary product markets, they have not yet
reached the scale to fully offset the reduction in premiums from normal policy attrition.

Realized investment gains were $4,000 in 2006 as compared to $78|0,000 in 2005. The
last few years leading up to 2006, the Company has booked significant realized
investment gains, which have been a key factor in reporting net income. However, it is
unrealistic to expect that the vicissitudes of the stock market will result in sizeable
realized investment gains every year.

The Company booked a $354,000 income tax expense in 2006 as compared to no such
expense in 2005. }

While we experienced the above disappointments in 2006, we also énade significant
progress during the year. ,

The Company had a breakeven segment performance (pre-tax income excluding realized
gains and losses and excluding interest expense) in 2006 as compared to a segment loss
of $269,000 in 2005. Total policy benefits were 77% of premiums and other
considerations in 2006, compared with 82% in 2005. In recent years we have
emphasized higher margin products and de-emphasized lower margin products.

There was a significant increase during 2006 in the sales of our new final expense life
insurance product. The annualized premium on final expense life insurance sales during
2006 was $1,265,000, compared to $674,000 in 2005. In the third quarter of 2006 we
added a marketing director focused exclusively on increasing our final expense life
insurance sales. :

Several major steps were taken during 2006 to update and strengthen the positioning of
our group ancillary product line. In the third quarter of 2006 we added an experienced
executive to oversee the development of this product line. Under his guidance, a new
group vision insurance product was developed, our group dental insilrance policy form
was redesigned to increase the flexibility of the benefit structure, and, as discussed below,
the decision was made to add sales representatives exclusively focused on promoting the




Company’s group ancillary products to the group benefit broker community. The
Company also obtained the backing, through reinsurance, of a highly-rated reinsurer for
all new group dental and vision insurance policies issued.

Outlook for 2007

The steps taken in 2006 provide the foundation for growth of our final expense life
insurance and group ancillary product lines in 2007 and beyond. For example, our
production goal for 2007 for the final expense life insurance product is $4 million of new
annualized premium, up from 2006’s actual production of about $1.3 million of new
annualized premium.

Towards the end of the first quarter of 2007 we added three sales representatives for our
group ancillary products. As a result of this and the steps taken in 2006, we are targeting
positive eamed premium growth for 2007 in our group ancillary product line, reversing
the declining trend of the last two years.

There is a lag time between the addition of the marketing resources previously noted and
the point at which they generate sufficient new business to offset their costs. We will be
challenged during 2007 to keep total expenses as a percentage of premiums and other
considerations from rising. This challenge will be compounded if relief from some of the
more onerous provisions of the federal Sarbanes-Oxley Act is not enacted.

We believe the Company is positioned for success and that our progress will be evident
in 2007.

Joe Bost

On a final, personal note, we were deeply saddened by the death on August 21, 2006 of
Joe Bost, our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Joe joined the
Company December 1, 2004. He had a dynamic personality and had quickly become
beloved by our employees. The best wishes of the entire Citizens Financial Corporation
family are extended to Joe’s wife, Kelley, and his children, Julie and Jennifer,

Darrell R. Wells
President and Chairman of the Board
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This report contains projections and other forward-looking statements regarding future events or the future financial
performance of the Company. Actual events and results may differ materially from those in the projections and
other forward-looking statements set forth herein. Among the important factors that could cause actual events or
results to differ materially from those in the projections and other forward-looking statements are: changes in the
market value of the Company’s investments, including stock market performance and interest rate changes;
customer response 10 marketing efforts; mortality and morbidity trends; regulatory changes; actions of independent
rating agencies; general economic conditions and increased competition; the Company's ability to achieve operating
efficiencies; unanticipated adverse litigation; and changes in Federal tax law. Readers are referred to the Items 1, 7,
7A and 8 in this report and to the Company Report on Financial Statements in the Company’s Annual Report to
Shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2006 for a discussion of these and ot.her important risk factors
concerning the Company and its operations.




PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Citizens Financial Corporation (herein, the “Company” or the “Registrant™) was incorporated in Kentucky in 1990
at the direction of the Board of Directors of Citizens Security Life Insurance Company (“Citizens Security”) for the
ultimate purpose of becoming an insurance holding company. Pursuant to a merger completed in 1991, Citizens
Security became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company is now a holding company that engages
in the business of life insurance, annuities, and accident and health insurance through Citizens Security and United
Liberty Life Insurance Company (“United Liberty™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Citizens Security (herein
collectively, the “Life Insurance Subsidiaries”). Citizens Security also owns Citizens Insurance Company (“Citizens
Insurance™), which is licensed as a property and casualty insurer but currently has no business in force. The Life
Insurance Subsidiaries and Citizens Insurance are herein collectively referred to as the “Insurance Subsidiaries.”

Insurance Operations

The Company, through its Life Insurance Subsidiaries, operates in five business segments -- 1) home service life
insurance (“Home Service Life” or “Home Service”), 2) broker-sold life insurance and annuities (“Broker Life™), 3)
preneed life insurance (“Preneed Life” or “Preneed”), 4) dental insurance (“Dental”), and 5) other health and
accident insurance (“Other Health”). The Home Service and Preneed Life segments provide individual coverages;
the Dental segment provides group coverages; while the Broker Life and Other Health segments include individual
and group insurance coverages. The following table presents each business segment’s revenue; pretax segment
profit (loss) excluding realized investment gains (losses) and interest expense; and ending assets for each of the last
three fiscal years. Additional segment information is contained in Item 7 and in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

While preparing the current year’s financial statements, the Company discovered an error in the compilation and
reporting of certain reinsurance transactions that caused the Net Income (Ioss) to be misstated by $192,547,
$91,720, $107,058 and $122,566 for 2005 and the first, second and third quarters of 2006, respectively. The
previously issued consolidated financial statements have been restated herein to reflect the correction of this error.
See Note 2-CORRECTION OF AN ERROR and Note 10 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA in the NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for a presentation of the originally reported amounts, the related
changes and the restated amounts.




Se evenue, Profit { Loss) and A : L

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Revenue:
Home Service Life $ 8,840,283 $ 9,009,607 % 8,873,473
Broker Life 5,929,126 6,348,960 5,731,569
Preneed Life 5,156,860 7,501,933 9,422,793
Dentat 8,433,802 8,820,190 9,358,935
Other Health 911,392 961,952 1,103,521
Segment Totals 29,271,463 32,642:642 34,490,291
Net realized investment gains 4,041 780,265 2,868,250
Total Revenues $ 29275504 % 33422907 $ 37,358,541
2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
S ent :
Home Service Life $ (176,484) § (12,783) $ (616,755)
Broker Life (110,698) (221,847) 961,413)
Preneed Life 376,774 464,393 (275,350)
Dental (58,985) (193,140) (150,335)
Other Health {29,975) (305,604) (303,463)
Net segment profit (loss) 632 (268,981) (2.307,316)
Net realized investment gains 4,041 780,265 2,868,250
Less Interest expense 486,645 379,519 354,200
Income (loss) before income taxes $ (481,972) § 131,765 % 206,734
2005
December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Assets;
Home Service Life $ 42233804 $ 41,620,007 $ 41465725
Broker Life 49,098,467 51,305,778 54,414,225
Preneed Life 54,193,219 57,603,193 58,560,125
Dental 250,030 913,764 1,025,005
Other Health £,504,029 1,782,055 1,805,479
Total Assets $ 147279549 $ 153,224,797 § 157,270,559

Home Service Life. The Home Service Life segment consists primarily of traditional whole life insurance, which provides
policyholders with permanent life insurance and fixed, guaranteed rates of return on the cash value element of policy
premiums. Agents for these products sell primarily small face value policies (typically from $1,000 to $10,000). These
policies are subject to normal underwriting procedures with the extent of such procedurés determined by the amount of
insurance, age of applicant and other pertinent factors.

Broker Life. The Broker Life segment offers traditional whole life insurance; universal life insurance, which provides
policyholders with permanent life insurance and adjustable rates of return on the cash value element of policy premiums,
based upon curent interest rates; annuities; group life; accidental death and dismemberment; and dependent life insurance.
The majority of Broker Life sales consists of whole life graded death benefit and simplified issue policies, as well as the
new final expense policies.




The graded death benefit policy returns premium plus interest compounded at an annual rate of 10% if the insured dies of
natural causes during the first three years the policy is in force, If the insured dies of an accidental cause, the benefit
payable is the face amount of the policy. The simplified issue product provides full face amount coverage from date of
issue, is more extensively underwritten and carries lower premium rates than the graded death benefit product. These
products are targeted towards the “final expense market.”

Generally, traditional whole life insurance products are more profitable than universal life policies, in part because
investment margins are normally greater for traditional whole life products than for universal life policies. Overall
profitability on universal life policies may decline as a result of downward interest crediting rate adjustments to the extent
that policyholders withdraw funds to invest in higher-yielding financial products. The profitability of traditional whole life
products and universal life policies is also dependent upon the ultimate underwriting experience and the realization of
anticipated unit administrative costs. The Company believes that the historical claims experience for the traditional whole
life and universal life products issued by the Life Insurance Subsidiaries has been within expected ranges, in relation to the
mortality assumptions used to price the products.

Substantially all annuity considerations are attributable to sales of flexible premium deferred annuities, life policy annuity
riders, and single premium deferred annuities. Generally, a flexible premium deferred annuity or a life policy annuity rider
permits premium payments in such amounts as the policyholder deems appropriate, while a single premium deferred
annuity requires a one-time Jump sum payment.

Prenced Life. The Preneed Life segment products are traditional whole life policies sold to individuals in connection with
prearrangement of their funeral and include single and multi-pay coverages, generally in amounts of $10,000 and less.
These policies are generally sold to middle-aged to elderly individuals.

Coverage in Force.

The following table provides information concerning the Life Insurance Subsidiaries' volume of life insurance coverage in
force.

2005

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Thousands) 2006 {As Restated) 2004
Gross In-force at beginning of year' $ 716635 % 737,984 % 765,051
New business issued during year:

Individual $ 50,174 % 83,306 § 109,073

Group 2,195 2,716 12,668

New business total $ 52,369 $ 86,022 §% 121,741

Terminations during year $ 85940 $ 107,371 § 148,808
Termination rate® 12.00% 14.50% 19.50%
Gross In-force at end of yea.r’:

Individual $ 596,520 $ 623,528 §$ 639,360

Group 86,544 93,107 98,624
Gross In-force total at end of year $ 683,064 $ 716,635 §$ 737,984
Reinsurance ceded at end of year 63,326 75,462 84,456
Net In-force at end of year $ 619,738 $ 641,173 § 653,528

Before deduction of reinsurance ceded.
2Represents the percentage of individual policies terminated during the indicated period by lapse, surrender, conversion,
maturity, or otherwise.

The downward trend in Net In-force amounts is primarily the result of the reduced new premium in the Preneed segment
(as part of the Company's strategy) and continued benefit payments in this segment.




Dental Insurance. Dental products are indemnity policies sold on a pure group and voluntary group basis. Voluntary dental
groups must meet prescribed participation limits. All dental products have annual limits on all covered procedures and
lifetime limits on orthodontia procedures. In addition, orthodontia and major restorative procedures are not covered for the
first six months to one year, depending upon the plan, unless a no-loss-no-gain provision is attached to the policy.

Other Health Insurance. Other Health products include individual accident and health insurance policies, which provide
coverage for monthly income during periods of hospitalization, scheduled reimbursement for specific hospital and surgical
expenses and cancer treatments, and lump sum payments for accidental death or dismembérment. Group health plans are
also offered, providing coverage for shori-term disability, and income protection, The Company is not allocating
significant marketing resources to this segment.

Marketing. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries are currently licensed to sell products in 29 states and the District of
Columbia. Citizens Security and United Liberty are both licensed in the states designated below with a “6” while only
Citizens Security is licensed in the states designated “c” and only United Liberty in the states designated *“u”".

b  Alabama b Indiana u Nebraska u  Oregon

u  Arizona u Kansas u  Nevada ¢ Pennsylvania
b Arkansas b Kentucky ¢ New Jersey ' b South Carolina
u  Colorado b Louisiana u  New Mexico b  Tenncssee

¢ Delaware b  Maryland ¢ North Carolina b Texas

¢ District of Columbia ¢ Mississippi ¢ Ohip u LUtah

b Florida b Missouri u  Oklahoma ¢ Virginia

¢ Georgia b West Virginia

The Life Insurance Subsidiaries market products through the personal producing general agent distribution system.
Approximately 3,300 sales representatives are licensed as independent agents for the Life Insurance Subsidiaries. Nearly
all of these agents also represent other insurers. Approximately 1,000 of these agents specialize in the home service
market. That market consists primarily of middle and low-income families and individuals who desire whole life policies
with policy limits typically below $10,000. Agents usually collect premiums directly at monthly intervals. The home
service market has higher than average policy lapse rates. Approximately 500 agents specialize in the Preneed market.
Typically, these agents are funeral directors or operate from facilities owned by funeral directors.

The Life Insurance Subsidiaries furnish rate material, brochures, applications, and other pertinent sales material, at no
expense to the agents. The agents are responsible for complying with state licensing laws and any related appointment fees.
Agents are compensated by commissions. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries have agent commission arrangemenis that are
generally intended to provide competitive incentives for agents to increase their production of new insurance and to
promote continued renewals of in-force insurance. Historically, these incentives have frequently involved awards,
overrides, and compensation scales that escalate according to achievement levels for néwly-issued business and that
provide additional payments for renewal business.

Underwriting. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries follow underwriting procedures designed to assess and quantify insurance
risks before issuing life and health insurance policies to individuals and members of groups. Such procedures require
medical examinations (including blood tests, where permitted) of applicants for certain policies of health insurance and for
policies of life insurance in excess of certain policy limits. These requirements are graduated according to the applicant’s
age and vary by policy type. In addition, certain types of life insurance policies are offered with higher premium rates and
less stringent underwriting requirements. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries also rely upon each applicant's written
application for insurance, which is generally prepared under the supervision of a trained agent. In issuing health insurance,
information from the application and, in some cases, inspection reports, physician statements, or medical examinations are
used to determine whether a policy should be issued as applied for, issued with reduced coverage under a health rider, or
rejected.




Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (“AIDS”) claims identified to date, as a percentage of total claims, have not been
significant for the Life Insurance Subsidiaries. Evaluating the impact of future AIDS claims under health and life insurance
policies issued is extremely difficult, in part due to the insufficiency and conflicting data regarding the number of persons
now infected with the AIDS virus, uncertainty as to the speed at which the AIDS virus has and may spread through the
general population, and advancements in medical treatment options. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries have implemented,
where legally permitted, underwriting procedures designed to assist in the detection of the AIDS virus in applicants.

Investments. The Company derives a substantial portion of its revenue from investments. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries
maintain diversified investment portfolios that are held primarily to fund future policyholder obligations. State insurance
laws impose certain restrictions on the nature and extent of investments by insurance companies and, in some states, require
divestiture of assets contravening these restrictions. Within the framework of such laws, the Life Insurance Subsidiaries
follow a general strategy to maximize total return (current income plus appreciation) without subjecting themselves to
undue risk. When deemed appropriate, the Life Insurance Subsidiaries have held selected non-investment grade bonds that
provide higher yields or are convertible to common stock. The Company considers a bond non-investment grade if it is
unrated or rated less than BBB by Standard & Poor's Rating Group (“S&P”) or BAA by Moody's Investors Service
(“Moody's™). The Company’s non-investment grade bonds, based on reported fair values, represented 3.0% of the
Company’s cash and invested assets as of December 31, 2006. Citizens Security has maintained substantial investments in
equity securities in an effort to achieve higher investment earnings than can usually be achieved through portfolio bonds but
at a greater comparative risk. The Company also maintains an investment portfolio of equity securities separate from those
of the Insurance Subsidiaries. Federally-insured mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations and real
estate investments, apart from the investment in the office building described in Item 2, “Description of Property,”
represented approximately 0.6% of cash and invested assets as of Decernber 31, 2006. Neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries owned any collateralized mortgage-backed securities as of December 31, 2006 that would be included in the
high-risk classification.

For additional information concerning investment results, see Item 7.

Reinsurance. In keeping with industry practice, the Life Insurance Subsidiaries reinsure, with unaffiliated insurance
companies, portions of the life and health insurance risks which they underwrite. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries generally
retain no more than $40,000 of individual life insurance risk and $20,000 of group life insurance risk for any single life.
Graded death benefit and simplified issue coverages above $4,000 are generally 50% reinsured, with the Life Insurance
Subsidiaries maintaining a maximum $10,000 risk on any cne life. Individual and group accidental death coverage is 100%
reinsured. At December 31, 2006, approximately $63,326,000 or 9.3% of life insurance in force was reinsured under
arrangements described in Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Under most reinsurance
arrangements described above, new insurance is reinsured automatically rather than on a basis that would require the
reinsurer's prior approval. Generally, the Life Insurance Subsidiaries enter into indemnity reinsurance arrangements to
assist in diversifying their risks and to limit their maximum loss on large or unusually hazardous risks. Indemnity
reinsurance does not discharge the ceding insurer's liability to meet policy claims on the reinsured business. Accordingly,
the Life Insurance Subsidiaries remain responsible for policy claims on the reinsured business to the extent a reinsurer
should fail to pay such claims.

Competition. The insurance industry is highly competitive, with approximately 1,500 life and health insurance companies
in the United States. Many insurers and insurance holding company systems have substantially greater capital and surplus,
larger and more diversified portfolios of life and health insurance policies, and larger agency sales operations than those of
the Life Insurance Subsidiaries. Financial and claims-paying ratings assigned to insurers by A.M. Best Company (“Best™)
and by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations have become more important to policyholders. Citizens
Security's rating was last changed by Best in October 2001, when it was downgraded to B- (Fair) from B (Fair). The B-
rating was reaffirmed in December 2006. United Liberty’s rating has remained at B- (Fair} since its 1998 acquisition.
According to Best, B- ratings are assigned to companies that have on balance, fair financial strength, operating performance
and market profile when compared to the standards established by Best. Alsc according to Best, B- companies have an
ability to meet their current obligations to policyholders, but their financial strength is vulnerable to adverse changes in
underwriting or economic conditions. There are seven Best rating categories above the B- category from B to A++. The
Life Insurance Subsidiaries will continue to pursue upward revisions in their Best ratings. Citizens Insurance has no
insurance business in force and is not rated by Best.




A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and is subject to revision or withdrawal by the assigning
rating organization. Each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

n
The Life Insurance Subsidiaries compete primarily on the basis of the experience, size, accessibility and claims response of
their customer service representatives, product design, service and pricing. The Company believes that the Life Insurance
Subsidiaries are generally competitive in the markets in which they are engaged based upon premium rates and services,
have good relationships with their agents, and have an adequate variety of insurance and annuity products approved for

issuance. ‘

{
State Insurance Regulation. The Insurance Subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive regulation in the states in which they
are authorized to conduct business. The laws of such states establish supervisory agencies with broad administrative
powers, among other things, to grant and revoke licenses for transacting business, regulate the form and content of policies,
establish reserve requirements, prescribe the type and amount of allowable investments, and review premium rates for
fairness and adequacy. The Insurance Subsidiaries file detailed annual statements with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) and with many states in which they are licensed to transact business. The Kentucky
Office of Insurance (“KOI") also periodically examines the business and accounts of the Inlsurance Subsidiaries.

The Life Insurance Subsidiaries also can be required, under the solvency or guaranty laws of most states in which they do
business, to pay assessments (up to prescribed limits) to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of other insurance companies
that become insolvent. These assessments may be deferred or foregone under most guaranty laws if they would threaten an
insurer's financial strength and, in certain instances, may be offset against future premium or intangible property taxes.
Gross assessments for the Life Insurance Subsidiaries, net of refunds but before offsets for future premium or intangible
property taxes, were $171, $5,544, and $5,178 in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. I

Kentucky, in common with substantially all states, regulates transactions between or affecting insurance holding companies
and their insurance company subsidiaries, including the Company and the Insurance Subsidiaries. Generally, under
Kentucky insurance holding company statutes, the KOI must approve in advance the direct or indirect acquisition of 15%
or more of the voting securities of an insurance company organized under the laws of Kentucky. Such statutes also regulate
certain transactions among affiliates, including the payment of dividends by an insurance company to its holding company
parent. Under the Kentucky statutes, the Insurance Subsidiaries may not during any year pay dividends on their common
and preferred stock to their parent company in excess of the lesser of the net gain from operations for the preceding year or
10% of their capital and surplus at the end of the preceding year, without the consent of the Executive Director of the KOL
For 2007, the maximum amount of dividends that Citizens Security, United Liberty and Citizens Insurance could pay,
without the Executive Director's approval, is $29,700, $228,100 and $19,700, respectively. The Company provides
substantially all management, operating and employee services for the Insurance Subsidiaries and is reimbursed at actual
cost plus 15%. This management fee totaled $5,759,000 for 2006. The Company currently has resources which
management believes will be adequate to service debt obligations through 2007, without relying upon affiliate dividends for
near-term debt service. ;

During recent years, the NAIC has taken several steps to address public concerns regardirig insurer solvency. These steps
included implementing a state certification program designed to promote uniformity among the insurance laws of the
various states and developing insurer reporting requirements that focus on asset quality, capital adequacy, profitability,
asset/liability matching, and liquidity. These requirements include establishment of asset valuation reserves (“AVR”) and
interest maintenance reserves (“IMR™), risk-based capital (“RBC™) rules to assess the capital adequacy of an insurer, and a
revision to the Standard Valuation Law (“SVL™) that specifies minimum reserve levels and requires cash flow testing in
which projected cash inflows from assets are compared to projected cash outflows for liabilities to determine reserve
adequacy. :
The Life Insurance Subsidiaries’ AVR, as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, is shown in Item 7. Cash flow testing
and the results of such testing as applied to the Life Insurance Subsidiaries are also described and discussed in Item 7.

RBC provides a means of establishing the capital standards for insurance companies ltt) support their overall business
operations in light of their size and risk profile. The four categories of major risk mvolved in the formula are [i] asset risk -
- the risk with respect to the insurer's assets; [ii] insurance risk -- the risk of adverse insurance experience with respect to
the insurer's liabilities and obligations; [iii] interest rate risk -- the interest risk with respect to the insurer’s business; and
{1v] business risk -- all other business risks. A company's RBC is calculated by applying factors to various asset, premium
and reserve items, with higher factors for those items with greater underlying risk and lower factors for less risky items.
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RBC standards are used by regulators to set in motion appropriate regulatory actions relating to insurers that show signs of
weak or deteriorating conditions. They also provide an additional standard for minimum capital, below which companies
would be placed in conservatorship.

Based on RBC computations as of December 31, 2006, the Insurance Subsidiaries each have capital that is in excess of
minimum regulatory requirements.

Action taken by the NAIC in these and other areas may have a significant impact on the regulation of insurance companies
during the next several years. In addition, various proposals are being considered for permitting insurers to elect Federal
regulation. Given their comparatively smail size, it may be expected that the Life Insurance Subsidiaries would be affected
by more stringent regulatory policy, both under existing laws and any new regulatory initiatives. Such effects could include
curtailment or discontinuance of insurance underwriting in one or more states, mandated increases in capital and surplus,
and/or other effects.

Income Taxation. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries are taxed under the life insurance company provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Under the Code, a life insurance company's taxable income incorporates
all income, including life and health premiums, investment income, and certain decreases in reserves. The Code currently
establishes 2 maximum corporate tax rate of 34% and imposes a corporate aiternative minimum tax rate of 20%. See Item
7 and Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Code currently requires capitalization and amortization over a five to ten year period of certain policy acquisition costs
incurred in connection with the sale of certain insurance products. Prior tax laws permitted these costs to be deducted as
incurred. These provisions apply to life, health, and annuity business. Ceriain proposals to make additional changes in the
federal income tax laws, including increasing marginal tax rates, and regulations affecting insurance companies or
insurance products, continue to be considered at various times in the United States Congress and by the Internal Revenue
Service. The Company currently cannot predict whether any additional changes will be adopted in the foreseeable future
or, if adopted, whether such measures will have a material effect on its operations.

Reserves. In accordance with applicable insurance laws, the Life Insurance Subsidiaries have established and carry as
liabilities actuarially determined reserves to meet their policy obligations. Life insurance reserves, when added to interest
thereon at certain assumed rates and premiums to be received on outstanding policies, are required to be sufficient to meet
policy obligations. Reserves maintained for health insurance include the unearned premiums under each policy, reserves
for claims that have been reported but not yet paid, and reserves for claims that have been incurred but have not been
reported. Furthermore, for all health policies under which renewability is guaranteed, additional reserves are maintained in
recognition of the actuarially calculated probability that the frequency and amount of claims will increase as policies
persist. The Life Insurance Subsidiaries are required to maintain reserves on reinsured business assumed on a basis
essentially comparable to direct insurance reserves, Reinsurance business assumed is presently insignificant in amount.

The reserves carried in the financial statements included in this Form 10-K are calculated on the basis of accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and differ from the reserves specified by laws of the various states, which
govern preparation of financial statements on the statutory basis of accounting for the Life Insurance Subsidiaries. These
differences arise from the use of different mortality and morbidity tables and interest assumptions, the introduction of lapse
assumptions into the reserve calculation, and the use of the level premium reserve method on all insurance business. See
Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for certain additional information regarding reserve assumptions
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Employees. As of March 1, 2007, the Company employed 69 people, excluding agents. As of that date, the Company had
approximately 3,300 independent agents licensed to sell its products.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following list describes several of the more significant risk factors unique to our company. Additional risks to which
we are subject include, but are not limited to, the factors discussed under “Forward- Lookmg Statements” and elsewhere in
this Form 10-K: !

Market fluctuations and general economic conditions may adversely impact our operating results and financial
position,

Our investment income and the values of our investment holdings are sensitive to stock, real estate and interest rate market
fluctuations and general economic conditions and these fluctuations could adversely affect our investment returns, realized
and unrealized investment gains and losses and the value of our invested assets. A prolonged period of high inflation could
cause a negative change in consumer sentiment adversely affecting the sales and persistency of our products. Market
conditions also determine the availability and cost of reinsurance we employ to fimit our risks.

Losses due to defaults by others could adversely impact the value of our investments and opr operating results,

Issuers and borrowers whose securities we hold and reinsurers may default on their obligations to us due to bankruptcy,
insolvency, lack of liquidity, adverse economic conditions, operational failure, fraud or other reasons, having an adverse
impact on our operating results and financial position. :

The life insurance industry is becoming increasingly competitive. If we are not able to effectively compete it would
adversely impact our operating results and financial position.

We face s:gmﬁcant competition, including from companies with significantly greater resources. Product life cycles have
shortened in many product segments, creating intense competition regarding product ‘features. Larger companies with
greater resources are able to allocate more resources to brand identity, product development and risk management, as well
as distribution capability and information technology needed to offer the superior customer service demanded by an
increasingly sophisticated marketplace (both policyholder and agent base).

Differences hetween actual claims experience and undeywriting and reserving assumptions might adversely impact
our operating results and financial position.

We set prices for our insurance products based upon expected claims, using assumptions for mortality and morbidity rates
of our policyholders and expected persistency of our products. Significant deviations in actual experience from our pricing
assumptions could adversely affect our profitability.

If our reserves for future policyholder benefits are inadequate, an increase jn our reserves in the future would
adversely impact our operating results and financial position.

We establish reserves to pay future policyholder benefits based upon actuarial or statistical estimates, using many
assumptions and projections which involve the exercise of significant judgment, including as to the levels of and timing of
receipt or payment of premiums, benefits, claims, expenses, interest credits, investment results, surrenders, mortality,
morbidity and persistency. If we conclude that our reserves are inadequate, we would be required to increase our reserves
and incur operating statement charges for the period in which we make the determination, adversely impacting our
operating results and financial position.

Reinsurance may not be available, affordable or adequate to protect us against losses.

While life reinsurance generally binds the reinsurer for the life of the business reinsured at generally fixed pricing, market
conditions determine the availability and cost of reinsurance protection for new business. As a result of consolidation of the
life reinsurance market and other market factors, capacity in the life reinsurance market has decreased. Further, life
reinsurance is currently available at higher prices and less favorable terms than those prevailing in earlier years. Further
consolidation, regulatory developments, catastrophic events or other significant developments affecting the pricing and
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availability of reinsurance could materially harm the reinsurance market and our ability to enter into reinsurance
agreements. An increase in the cost of reinsurance or our inability to protect ourselves against large losses would adversely
impact our operating results and financial position.

We may be unable to attract and retain sales representatives for our products which would adversely impact our
operating results and financial position.

We use an independent agent distribution channel to sell our products. Our independent agents generally sell competing
products offered by a number of different insurance companies. Strong competition exists among insurance companies for
agents with demonstrated ability. The companies represented by independent agents compete on the basis of financial
position, support services, compensation, product features and other factors. If we are unsuccessful in attracting and
retaining high quality, producing agents our profitability could be significantly adversely affected.

We may not be abl apital, if necessary, at an affordable cost which could adverselv impact our operatin
results.

Due to our relative small size, the relatively thin market for shares of our stock and our lack of a stable history of income,
we may not be able to raise additional capital or borrowings, if needed, with acceptable terms. This could force us to forgo
opportunities to grow or force us to raise capital with unfavorable terms, which could adversely impact our operating
results and financial position.

The loss and replacement of a key employee or director could disrupt our operations and adversely impact our
operating results.

Due to the relative size and the limited resources of our business we are forced to operate with a limited number of key
management employees. The loss of one or more of our key employees or directors could be disruptive to our operations,
and filling a vacancy could be expensive and difficult because we compete with larger companies having greater resources
for qualified management employees and directors. Such a loss could adversely impact our operating results.

We mav be required to accelerate the amortization of deferred policy acquisition cests (“DAC”), or value of
insurance acquired (“VIF”), or recognize impairment in the value of our goodwill that would adversely impact our
operating results and financial position.

Deferred policy acquisition costs represent the costs that vary with and are related primarily to the acquisition of new and
renewal insurance contracts. We amortize these costs over the expected lives of the related insurance contracts. Value of
insurance acquired represents the present value of future profits embedded in acquired business and is amortized over the
expected lives of the acquired contracts. Goodwill represents the excess of the amounts we paid to acquire subsidiaries and
other business over the fair value at the date of acquisition of the net assets acquired. Management continuously tests the
DAC and VIF to determine if the recorded amounts are recoverable under current assumptions. We also regularly review
the estimates and assumptions underlying DAC and VIF for those preducts for which we amortize DAC and VIF in
proportion to gross profits. Management reviews goodwill for impairment at least annually based upon estimates of the fair
value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill relates. Given changes in facts and circumstances, these tests and reviews
could lead to reductions in goodwill, DAC or VIF that could have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial
position.

A downgrade or potential downgrade in our claims paving rating could limit our ability to market products and/or
increase the number or value of policies being surrendered.

Claims paying ratings represent the opinions of rating agencies regarding the financial ability of an insurance company to

meet its obligations under an insurance policy, and are important factors affecting public confidence in an insurer and its
competitive position in marketing products.
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Qur operating insurance subsidiaries are heavily regulated and changes in regulation could reduce our profitability
and limit our growth.

Our insurance subsidiaries are regulated by the KOI and other states in which they are licensed to do business. We are also
subject to the rules and regulations of the SEC and NASDAQ relative to reporting and disclosure, security trading,
accounting and financial reporting and corporate governance matters. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and
regulations adopted in furtherance of that Act have substantially increased the requirements in these and other areas for
public companies. Compliance with applicable laws and regulations is time consuming and staff intensive. Changes in
these laws and regulations may materially increase our direct and indirect compliance costs, adversely impacting our
operating results and financial position.

Legal actions are inherent in our insurance business and could adversely jmpact our o rating results and financial
position.

b
We face a significant risk of litigation and regulatory investigations and actions in the ordinary course of business,
including the risk of class action lawsuits. Any adverse judgment against us, and the legal costs of defending our company
in potentially lengthy legal battles would have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial position, as well as
threaten our ability to continue operating.

tastrophes mav adversely impact our operating results and financial position.

Our insurance operations are exposed to the risk of catastrophic mortality, such as a pandemic or other natural or man
caused event that causes a large number of deaths. The occurrence of any such catastrophic event could materially
adversely impact our operating results and financial position due to a potentially large number of death claims and
surrenders.

Our risk management policies and procedures may leave us exposed to gnidentiﬁed or unanticipated risk which
could adversely impact our operating results and financial position.

Our policies and procedures to monitor risks may not be fully effective and may leave us exposed to unidentified and
unanticipated risks. Past or future employee or agent misconduct could result in violations of law by us, regulatory
sanctions, serious financial harm or harm to our reputation, and the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity
may not be effective in all cases. A failure of our computer systems or a compromise of their security could subject us to
regulatory sanctions or other claims, harm our reputation, interrupt our operations and adversely impact our business,
operating results, or financial position. '
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company owns, through Citizens Security, a three-story, 63,000 square foot office building in suburban Louisville,
Kentucky completed in 1988. The Company and its Subsidiaries occupy about 32% of the building for their headquariers
and home offices. The remaining 68% of the building space is available for lease to tenants under leases of various
durations. Market conditions for this property are generally favorable and, in management’s opinion, the property is
adequately covered by insurance. Currently, the Company’s policy is not to invest in additional real estate or real estate
mortgages, although a change in such policy would not require a vote of security holders. In addition, the Company’s
current bank lending agreement precludes investment in additicnal real estate and in mortgages with a loan-to-appraised-
value ratio of more than 75%.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is party to lawsuits in the normal course of business. Based on information currently available, management
believes that currently pending lawsuits will be resolved without material financial impact to the Company.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF
MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K to a vote of the Company's
security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of March 21, 2007, there were approximately 2,300 holders of record of the Company’s Class A Stock, its only ¢lass of
commeon equity. The Class A Stock is currently eligible for quotation on the National Association of Securities Dealers,
Inc.'s Small-Cap Market (“NASDAQ") under the trading symbol CNFL. Trading volume in 2006 was 22.5% of the
average shares outstanding during the year and trading volume by non-affiliates was about 62.6% of the average shares
owned by non-affiliates during the year.

13




The following table summarizes quarterly high and low bid quotations for the Class A Stock in 2006 and 2005 as reported
by NASDAQ. Such quotations reflect inter-dealer prices and do not include retail markup, markdown, or commission, and
may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Bid Quotations for Class A Stock
uarter Ende High Bid Low Bid

December 31, 2006 s 6.840 $ 4.200
September 30, 2006 s 6.580 $ 4.560
June 30, 2006 $ 8.070 L 5.810
March 31, 2006 $ 6.620 $ 2,700
December 31, 2005 $ 7.500 $ 6.250
September 30, 2005 $ 8.750 $ 6.500
June 30, 2005 $ 9.000 $ 7.010
March 31, 2005 $ 10.000 Y 6.750

The Company has not paid a dividend on the Class A Stock. The Board of Directors of the Company has not adopted a
dividend payment policy; however, dividends must necessarily depend upon the Company's earnings and financial
condition, applicable legal restrictions, and other factors relevant at the time the Board of Directors considers a dividend
policy. The Company is subject to a loan agreement covenant that prevents it from paying dividends on the Class A Stock
without the consent of the lender except to the extent it can meet certain requirements relating to the ratio of its outstanding
borrowings compared to dividends and income before interest expense, amortization, depreciation and income tax expense
for (5) consecutive quarters and provided that there is no default or potential default under the loan agreement. As of
January 2007, the bank loan covenant precludes the Company from paying any dividends. Cash available for dividends to
shareholders of the Company must initially come from income and capital gains earned on its investment portfolio,
management service fees and dividends paid by the Insurance Subsidiaries, and Citizens Security’s repurchase of its
preferred stock owned by the Company. Provisions of the Kentucky Insurance Code subject transactions between the
Insurance Subsidiaries and their respective parents, including dividend payments, to certain standards generally intended to
prevent such transactions from adversely affecting the adequacy of the Insurance Subsidiaries’ capital and surplus available
to support policyholder obligations. See Item 1. “Description of Business -- State Insurance Regulation.” In addition,
under the Kentucky Business Corporation Act, the Company may not pay dividends if, after giving effect to a dividend, it
would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business or if its total liabilities would exceed
its total assets. ‘

L
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Secm'it@ to be Weighted-Average Exercise Price of Number of Securitics Remaining A\:ailablc
Issued Upon Exercise of - ling Options, Warrants and for Future Issuance Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Warrants Rights' Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities)
Plan Category and Rights Reflected in Colurmn a)
Bql:]sty mﬂﬂ 0 Not applicable 110,000
security holders
Equity compensation 0 Not applicable 0
plans not approved
by security holders
Total 0 Not applicable 110,000
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Total Number of Shares]Appmxinme Dollar Value
Purchased as part of | of Shares that May Yet be
Period Publicly Announced | Purchased Under the
Total Number of Shares | Average Price Paid Plans or Programs Flans or Programs
Purchased per Share
(a) (b) (b)

October 1, 2006

through October 31, 0 $0.00 0 $406.621

2006

Novernber 1, 2006

through November 31, 10,719 $5.37 10,719 $349,103

2006

December 1, 2006

through December 31, 34,637 $6.27 34,637 $131,767

2006

Total 45,356 $6.06 45,356

(a) The average price paid per share of stock repurchased under the stock repurchase program includes any
commissions paid to the brokers.

(b) Information in these columns relates to the stock repurchase program publicly announced on August 12, 1998
under which our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an aggregate of $1,200,000 of cur common
stock, amended November 12, 2002 to authorize the repurchase of an additional $250,000 and further amended
May 23, 2006 to authorize repurchase of an additional $500,000. Under the repurchase program, we may
repurchase outstanding shares of our common stock from time to time in the open market and through privately
negotiated transactions. Unless terminated earlier by resolution of our Board of Directors, the repurchase program
will expire when we have repurchased all shares authorized for repurchase under the repurchase program.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

2005
As of and for the Year Ended December 31 2006 {As Restated) 2004 2003 2002
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS i
Premiums and other considerations $ 22,372,967 § 25,548,188 % 27,972,409 % 33,586478 §$ 38,479,150
Investment and other income, net 6,898,496 7,094,454 6,517,882 6,161,324 6,093,036
Policy benefits and reserve change 17,296,838 20,851,098 23,525,543 27,574,154 31,878,748
Commissions, expense, amortization, net 11,973,993 12,060,525 13,272,064 | 13,146,302 13,247,015
|

Segment profit (loss) 632 (268,981) (2,307,316) ! (972,654) (553,5ThH
Realized investrment gains (losses), net 4,041 780,265 2,868,250 ! 1,977,635 (2,469,768)
Interest expense 486,645 379,519 354,200 363,273 305,715
Income tax expense (benefit) 353,932 - (48,880) (70,114) {757,000)
Net income (loss) $ (835,904) § 131,765 % 255613 % 711,822 § (2,572,060)
Net income (loss) applicable |

to common stock s (835904) § 131,765 % 255613 % 711,822 % (2,572,060)
Net income (Joss) per common share: !

Basic and diluted {z) $ (0.51) § 008 § 015 § 042 % (1.50)
FINANCIAL POSITION i
Total assets $ 147,279,540 § 153,224,797 §% 157,270,559 S 158,880,332 § 148,441,532
Notes payable $ 5,538,337 $ 5375003 % 5,791,669 % 7,133,335 $ 7,779,168
Shareholders’ equity $ 14,116,045 § 17,244004 % 19,754,351 § 20,833,400 § 17,757,632
Shareholders’ equity per share (a) $ 254 § 1032 % 176 % 1247 §$ 10.53
Cash dividends declared per share (2) $ - s - s -5 $ .
INVESTMENTS Z
Average cash and invested assets $ 127,198,391 $ 134,744,182 § 135,812,153 § 131,440,555 $ 117,460,459
Average equity ponifolio (cost basis) ) 7,994,936 § 1558958 § 11,269,557 § 10,030,727 § 6,966,585
Investment income yield (b) 5.20% 5.10% 4.70% E 4.50% 4.80%
Change in unrealized investment gains '

(losses), net of tax $ (1,776,714) $ (2,642,112) $ (1,232,671) |$ 237,714 % 466,654
LIFE INSURANCE DATA ,
Premiums 3 13,134,282 % 15,892,337 § 17,621,330 % 23,943,062 § 28,948,728
Insurance in force, net at end of year $ 619,478,000 § 633518000 % 653,528,000 % 673,571,000 $ 696,520,600
HEALTH INSURANCE DATA |
Premiums $ 9,238,685 §$ 9,655,851 $ 10,351,079 § 9643416 § 9,530,422
Benefit ratio 63.01% 71.16% 71.81% 69.60% 69.50%

Note: See Item 7 for additional information relevant to the above data.

(@) Net income (loss) per share and shareholders’ equity per share are based upon the weighted average common shares outstanding
in 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 of 1,652,605, 1,671,628, 1,671,628, 1,685,390,and 1,711,627, respectively.

) Net investment income reported in the consolidated financial statements as a percent of avelrage cash and invested assets.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Company’s management continuously monitors the performance of and outlook for the Company by analyzing several
indicators that they judge to be critical. The key indicators of particular interest to management are (a) the general
economic environment relative to outlook, (b) trend of premium volume, (c} lapse rates, (d} mortality and morbidity rates,
{¢) trend of general expense levels, (f) asset and capital and surplus growth, (g} general interest rate movements, (h)
investment yields, (i) diversity (e.g. by industry) and mix (e.g. between fixed income securities and equity securities) of our
investment portfolios and (j) segment performance and trends.

The Company’s management has identified the following as major financial, operational and marketing accomplishments
during 2006:

The Company:

* positioned itself for expansion of its group product line by:

placing a new web-enabled group administration system into service

hiring an experienced Executive Vice President for Group Products

developing a new group vision product for introduction in 2007

developing a more flexible group dental product for introduction in 2007

obtaining the backing, through reinsurance, of a highly rated reinsurer for all new group products
issued

YVVVYY

e experienced significant growth in the new Final Expense premium and distribution channel.
Management sees the following as its key challenges for 2007:
» Financial
(1) generating significant premium growth for the Final Expense product

(2) recruiting several Group Product marketing representatives, setting the stage for significant premium
growth for these products in 2008 and beyond

(3) earning an operating profit (see page 28 of this Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation and Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a
discussion of statutory accounting)

(4) continuing to solidify the ratings from A.M. Best and setting the stage for a future rating upgrade
(see the section titled “Competition” in Item 1 in this Form 10-K for a discussion of the Company’s
rating)

¢ Operational

(1) continuing to control operating expenses while expanding distribution and implementing the reviews
required for compliance with the federal Sarbanes-Oxley Act

{2) enhancing software technology
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¢ Product line

f
(1} for Group Products: exploring non-traditional methods of growth, Slj.lch as third party administration,
marketing partnerships and acquisitions

(2) for Final Expense: continuing to increase premiums at a steady pace’

(3) for Home Service: minimizing the lapse rate, improving 13-month persistency, strengthening
controls over field premium collection, maintaining dlstnbunon relauonshlps and controlling
expenses

(4) for Preneed: maintaining current distribution relationships and conﬁdlling costs and expenses

The following discussion is presented to provide the reader with a clearer understanding of some of the operational
elements impacting the financial position and results as reported in the accompanying consolldated balance sheets and
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows. }

!
For the year 2006, the Company reported a consolidated pretax operating loss (which excludes net realized investment
gains of $4,000) of $486,000, compared to a pretax operating loss of $648,000 (which exc]udes net realized investment
gains of $780,000) for 2005 and a net loss of $836,000 for 2006, compared to a net income of $132,000 for 2005. The net
realized investment gains of $4,000 in 2006 are net of write downs of $687,000 of available-for-sale equity securities which
management deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired. There were no such write downs in 2005.

The Company is subject to various market risks. The most significant risks relate to fluctuations in interest rates (which
impact prices of fixed maturity securities) and prices of equity securities. The Company has at times experienced negative
total returns (defined as investment income and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses) on its investment
portfolio, however the total return for 2006 was 3.50% (the Company recorded pre-tax unrealized losses of $2,534,000 on
debt securities and unrealized gains of $301,000 on equities) compared to a total return of 2.60% in 2005. Historically
these returns have been favorable and the Company has successfully managed the risk over many years. Company
management devotes significant attention to the capital markets, and repositions the Company’s portfolio upon detection of
adverse risk trends associated with individual securities or overall markets. |

In an effort to increase levels of risk adjusted statutory surplus at the insurance subsndiarﬁr level, management repositions
the portfolio to take advantage of opportunities and increased its investment in equity securities on a market value basis by
$849,000 or 9.9 % and decreased fixed maturity securities by $11,863,000 or 10.5% (prxnc:lpally, securities with longer
maturity dates resulting in greater risks) during 2006. Management anticipates that this action will negatively impact long-
term total returns, however, the Company will further reposition the portfolios, as opponuhities become available, in order
to increase total returns and maintain an acceptable risk-adjusted statutory surplus at the insurance subsidiary level.

General expenses and depreciation for 2006 were up $428,000, or 6.2%, compared to 2003, principally due to the costs of
employing a marketing executive for life insurance products in the second quarter of 2005 and one marketing executive for
the group dental product in the fall of 2005 and one in the fall of 2006. We also placed in service, and therefore began to

depreciate, the new group administration system in January 2006. r
[
|

Segment Profit (Loss)

The Company manages its operations in five business segments, Home Service Life, Broker Life, Preneed Life, Dental, and
Other Health. Products in all five segments are sold through independent agency operations. Home Service Life consists
primarily of traditional life insurance coverage sold in amounts of $10,000 and less to middle and lower income
individuals. This distribution channel is characterized by a significant amount of agent contact with customers throughout
the year. Broker Life product sales consist primarily of simplified issue and graded-benefit policies in amounts of $10,000
and less, as well as our new Final Expense product in amounts of $10,000 to $25,000. Other products in the Broker Life
segment that comprise a significant portion of existing business include group life, universa;l life, annuities and participating
life policies. Preneed Life products are sold to individuals in connection with prearrangement of their funeral and include
single and multi-pay policies, generally in amounts of $10,000 and less. These policies afe generally sold to middle aged
and elderly individuals. Dental products are term policies generally sold to small and intermediate size employer groups.
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Other Health products include varions accident and health policies sold to individuals and employer groups. Profit or loss
for each segment is reported on a pretax basis, without an allocation of realized investment gains or interest expense.

The Company’s 2006 segment income (loss) was $1,000 compared to losses of $(269,000) in 2005 and $(2,307,000) in
2004, The segment loss in 2004, excluding nonrecurring items described below, was $(481,000).

The nonrecurring items in 2004 include costs of $1,190,000 (settlement and legal costs) incurred in 2004 associated with
the legal proceedings described in Item 3, and additional one time consulting expenses of $636,000 related to redesign and
other organizational restructuring begun in 2003, as well as severance agreements,

Segment income (loss) increased $270,000 to $1,000 in 2006 compared to a segment loss of $(269,000) in 2005 primarily
due to the positive impact of: (a) a decrease in policyholder benefits of $3,554,000; (b) a decrease in commissions of
$113,000; (c) a decrease in amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and value of insurance acquired of $194,000,
and (d) an increase in policy acquisition costs deferred of $208,000, offset by the negative impact of: (e) a decrease in net
premiums earned of $3,175,000 (Pre-need decreased $2,300,000, Dental decreased $376,000, Home Service decreased
$330,000, Other Health decreased $41,000, and Broker Life decreased $128,000 (net of the increase in new final expense
premiums of $901,000)); (f) a decrease in investment and other income of $196,000 and (g) an increase in general expenses
and depreciation of $428,000.

See pages 26 through 28 of Management’s Discussion and Analysis for a more extensive analysis of factors impacting the
individual segment operating results between years.

Net Income

The Company’s 2006 net loss was $(836,000} compared to a net income of $132,000 and $256,000 in 2005 and 2004,
respectively. These results reflect the segment losses described above (including nonrecurring items) and net realized
investment gains of $4,000, $780,000 and $2,868,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company realized
significant investment gains in both 2005 and 2004 due to restructuring the investment portfolio to include a greater
proportion of fixed maturity investments with shorter durations and fewer equity investments while taking advantage of an
upturn in the equities market. After the restructuring, our equities portfolio did not present opportunities for similar levels
of realized gains in 2006. Net realized investment gains and losses include losses resulting from the write down of
securities deemed by management to be other than temporarily impaired of $687,000, $0 and $653,000 in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Comprehensive Income (1.oss) Comprehensive Income (Loss) (which combines net income (loss) and net unrealized gains
and losses) was $(2,613,000), $(2,510,000), and $(977,000) for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. During 2006, the
Company continued to be adversely affected by relatively low yields on its fixed income investment portfolio. The increase
of $103,000 in comprehensive loss in 2006 is attributable to the decrease in unrealized losses of $865,000, offset by the
decrease in net income of $968,000 described above. Net unrealized losses in 2006 are comprised of net losses in our fixed
maturities portfolio of $1,697,000, offset by unrealized gains in our equities portfolio of $589,000. Late in the second
quarter of 2005, interest yields on fixed maturity investments began to rise. Although this adversely impacted the market
value of the Company’s bond portfolio, management believes the opportunity to invest new money at higher yvields will
have a long term positive impact on the Company’s operating eamnings. The 2006 environment continued to generate a
relatively high level of qualitative investment risk, as discussed in the Cash Flow and Liquidity section. The 2005
Comprehensive Loss results from unrealized losses resulting from market interest rates beginning to increase in 2005 (and
therefore the decline of $1,774,000, net of taxes, in the values of our fixed income portfolio) and a decline of $868,000, net
of taxes, in the value of our equities portfolio, offset by net income of $132,000.

During 2006, the Company repurchased 83,617 shares of its common stock at an average price of $6.16 per share. There
were no repurchases in 2005 and in 2004 13,600 shares were repurchased at an average price of $7.50 per share.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES f

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based on its consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. Preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, On
an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to investments, agent receivables, intangible
assets, policy liabilities, income taxes, regulatory requirements and contingencies. The Company bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
Company believes the following accounting policies, judgments and estimates, which have been discussed with the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors, critically impact preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Investment in Debt and Equity Securities. The Company holds debt and equity interests in a variety of companies, many of
which are seeking to exploit recent technology advancements. The majority of these are pubthy traded and many have
experienced volatile market prices. Company management periodically evaluates whether the declines in fair value of
investments are other-than-temporary. These evaluations involve significant judgment. The evaluations consist of 4 review
of qualitative and quantitative factors, including analysis of the issuer’s competitive position in its markets, deterioration in
the financial condition of the issuer, downgrades of the security by a rating agency, and other publicly available issuer-
specific news or general market conditions. Declines in fair values of securities deemed to be temporary and which the
Company has the ability and intent to hold until full recovery are included as an unrealized loss in shareholders’ equity.
Declines in fair values of securities deemed to be other-than-temporary are included in net income as realized investment
losses. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of underlymg investments could result in
losses or an inability to recover the current carrying value of the investments, thereby possnbly requiring an impairment
charge in the future. ,}
Deferred Acquisjtion Costs (“DAC™), The Company is required to defer certain policy acqmsmon costs and amortize them
over future periods. These costs include commissions and certain other expenses that vary with and are primarily
associated with acquiring new business. The deferred costs are recorded as an asset commonly referred to as deferred
policy acquisition costs (“DAC”). The DAC assel balance is subsequently charged to'income over the lives of the
underlying contracts in relation to the anticipated emergence of revenue or profits. Actual revenue or profits can vary from
Company estimates, resulting in an increase or decrease in the rate of amortization. The Company regularly evaluates its
DAC balances to determine if actual experience or other evidence suggesis that earlier estimates should be revised.
Assumptions considered significant include surrender and lapse rates, mortality, expense levels, investment performance,
and estimated interest spread. Should actual experience dictate that the Company change its assumptions regarding the
emergence of future revenues or profits (commonly referred to as “unlocking”), the Company would record a charge or
credit to bring its DAC balance to the level it would have been if using the new assumptions from the inception date of each
policy.

|
|

DAC is also subject to periodic recoverability and loss recognition testing. These tests ensure that the present value of
future contract-related cash flows will support the capitalized DAC balance to be amortized in the future. The present value
of these cash flows, less the benefit reserve, is compared with the unamortized DAC balance and if the DAC balance is
greater, the deficiency is charged to expense as a component of amortization and the asset balance is reduced to the
recoverable amount. For more information about accounting for DAC see Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, [

Goodwill and Intangible Impairment. The balance of the Company’s goodwill and value of insurance acquired (VIF) was
$2.7 million at December 31, 2006. The recovery of these assets is dependent on the fair value of the business to which
they relate. Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”, goodwill is subject to annual impairment tests based on the estimated fair value of the respective assets. There are
numerous assumptions and estimates underlying the determination of the estimated fair value of these assets. Different
valuation methods and assumptions can produce significantly different results that could affect the amount of any potential
impairment charge that might be required to be recognized. During both 2006 and 2005, the Company concluded that no

impairment adjustment was necessary for its goodwill or VIF. !
Policy Liabilities. Establishing policy liabilities for the Company’s long-duration insurance contracts requires making
many assumptions, including policyholder persistency, mortality rates, investment yields, tliiscretionary benefit increases,
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new business pricing, and operating expense levels. The Company evaluates historical experience for these factors when
assessing the need for changing current assumptions. However, since many of these factors are interdependent and subject
to short-term volatility during the long-duration contract period, substantial estimates and judgment are required.
Accordingly, if actual experience emerges differently from that assumed, any such difference would be recognized in the
current year’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Deferred Income Taxes. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets to the amount that it
believes is more likely than not to be realized. In assessing the need for the valuation allowance, the Company has not
assumed future taxable income. In the event the Company were to determine that it would be able to realize its deferred tax
assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount, an adjustment to deferred tax assets would increase income in the
period such determination was made. Likewise, should the Company determine that it would not be able to realize all or
part of its net deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the
period such determination was made.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets. At December 31, 2006, the Company's available-for-sale fixed maturities had a fair value of $101,062,000 and
amortized cost of $102,759,000. The Company’s fixed maturities portfolio decreased approximately 8.3% during 2006 and
increased 0.6% during 2005, on an amortized cost basis. Shown below is a distribution by rating category of the
Company's fixed maturities portfolio as of December 31, 2006.

Standard & Poor's Corporation Rating Amortized Cost' Fair Value
Investment grade:

AAAT A- $ 62349847 § 61,546,629

BBB+ to BBB- 36,289,824 35,737,920
Total investment grade 98,639,671 97,284,549
Non-investment grade:

BB+ to BB- 2,440,534 2,335,995

B+to B- 98,173 135,625

CCC+to C - -

Cl to not rated 1,580,153 1,305,597
Total non-investment grade 4,118,860 3,777,217
Total fixed maturities $ 102758531 § 101.061,766

1 Net of write-downs on bonds whose decline in value is belicved to be other-than-temporary
~Fair values as of December 31, 2006 were obtained primarily from Interactive Data Corporation.

The Company believes it has a well-diversified portfolio and has no plans to adjust its non-investment grade portfolio
significantly, unless necessary to satisfy requirements of state regulators or rating agencies. The Company purchases non-
investment grade bonds to obtain higher yields or convertible features and attempts to reduce credit risk by portfolio
diversification. Non-investment grade securities comprised 4.0% and 3.8% of the fixed maturities portfelio, on an
amortized cost basis, at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. During 2006 and 2005, the Company did not recognize
any impairment losses on fixed maturities. The Company reviews its fixed maturity portfolio quarterly for impairment
losses which might be other than temporary losses and recognizes all such losses in the quarter they are deemed other than

temporary.

Realized investment losses included $687,000, $0 and $807,000 of pretax impairment losses in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The impairments recorded were the result of the continued credit deterioration of specific issuers in the bond
and equity markets, especially in the biomedical and technology industries.
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Shown below are the Company's four largest holdings in non-investment grade bonds by a single issuer as of December 31,
2006.

Non-Investment Gradc
December 31, 2006 Amortized Cost - ' Fair Value
Largest $ 1,498,636 $ ''1,346,250
Second largest 923,818 | 887,497
Third largest 498,309 - 469,793
Fourth largest 495,855 . 447,675

Total $ 3416619 $ .3,151,216

The Company had no guarantee or other type of enhancement associated with the issuers represented above.

During 2006, the Company's investment in equity securities increased $548,000 on a cost basis, and increased $849,000 on
a fair value basis, after increasing $1,001,000 on a cost basis, and decreasing $363,000 on a fair value basis during 2005.
As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, there were $589,000, $288,000 and 31,652,000 respectively, of unrealized gains
on equity securities.

The Company reviews its marketable investments each quarter to determine if there have been declines in their value that in
management’s opinion is other-than-temporary. These reviews involve qualitative and quantitative information relating to
an individual company or industry and general factors impacting the economy. However, due to wide market fluctuations
occurring during recent years, determining whether declines are temporary has become much more complex and
judgmental. ‘

These reviews resulted in the recognition of impairment losses on equity securities totaling $687,000 during 2006
($218,000, $257,000, $142,000 and $70,000 for the first, second, third and fourth quarters respectively). During 2006,

equity securities were sold which contained $465,000 of impairment write downs and fixed securities were sold which
contained $183,000 of impairment write downs. There were no impairments on fixed se¢urities in 2006. During 2005,

equity securities were sold which contained impairment write-downs of $358,000 and no fixed maturities were sold which
contained impairment write downs. During 2004, the recognition of impairment lossés on equity securities totaled
$473,000 ($101,000, $319,000 and $53,000 for the first, third and fourth quarters, respectively). In addition, $334,000 of
impairment losses were recognized on fixed maturities during 2004, all in the third quarter.  During 2004, equity securities
were sold which contained $640,000 of impairment write downs and fixed securities were sold which contained $425,000
of impairment write downs. :

|
Citizens Security owns the building in which the Company and its subsidiaries maintain their home offices. They occupy

approximately 32% of the building with the balance available for lease to third-party tenants. Market conditions for this
property are generally favorable. An updated appraisal obtained during 2002 indicates the market value of the property is
approximately $2,725,000 higher than its carrying amounts.

|

At December 31, 2006, the Company has recorded $756,000 of goodwill and $12,57 I,OOQ of deferred policy acquisition
costs and value of insurance acquired. As noted in the above discussion of critical accounting policies and estimates, these
intangibles, and the recorded value of policy liabilities, are based on many assumptions that require substantial estimates
and judgment. At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 the Company reassessed thé assumptions supporting these
values in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Although no impairment was considered necessary management will continue to
monitor the appropriateness of the recorded values of these intangibles and will make adjustments to such values in the
future as management deems necessary.
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Liabilities. A comparison of total policy liabilities as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is shown below.
Approximatety 89% of the 2006 total consists of insurance policy benefit reserves while policyholder deposit liabilities
represent | 1% of the total.

December 31 2006 2005 2004

Home Service Life $ 37,512,117 § 36880468 § 36,056,122
Broker Life 44,036,626 44,583,236 45,086,466
Preneed Life 42,306,466 44,548,992 45,155,805
Dental 250,633 605,298 669,361
Other Health 1,565,265 1,851,858 1,914,235
Total 3 125,671,107 $ 128469852 $ 128 881989

Home Service Life premiums decreased 4.7% in 2006 from 2005 (Home Service Life revenue, including net investment
and other income, decreased by 1.9% in 2006 from 2005) with net growth in policy liabilities of 1.7% and 2.2% in 2006
and 2005, respectively due to the ageing of the policy portfolio for this segment. Broker Life premiums decreased 3.3% in
2006 compared with an increase of 9.8% in 2005. Pre-need Life premiums decreased dramatically in 2006 (46.0%) as the
result of the Company’s earlier modification of certain policy benefits and commissions (which resulted in the loss of a
number of producers) as well as an intentional refocusing of marketing efforts towards segments that the Company believes
offer more positive potential in the current environment. During 2006, Dental premiums decreased 4.3% from 2005 due to
continued competition in this market and more aggressive renewal underwriting procedures by the Company. The
Company has strengthened renewal underwriting standards in an effort to improve the loss ratic on this product. The Other
Health Premiums decreased 4.7% compared to 2005 because these products are not being actively marketed as the
company continues to redirect its focus to other segments in an effort to improve profitability in those segments.

Shown below is a progression of the Company's policyholder deposit activity for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Total Annuity and Other Universal Life
Beginning Balance s 14,716,369 § 9,254,397 § 5,461,972
Deposits 534,525 74,760 459,765
Withdrawals 1,522,229 886,194 636,035
Interest Credited 591,164 378,079 213,085
Ending Balance $ 14319829 % 8,821,042 $ 5,498,787

As indicated above, total policyholder deposits decreased by a net $396,540 during 2006. The Company is not devoting
significant marketing effort toward Annuity, Universal Life and other deposit products and has elected not to aggressively
compete in crediting excess interest on such products.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company does not participate in any off-balance sheet arrangements.
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

While preparing the current year’s financial statements, the Company discovered an error in the compilation and reporting
of certain reinsurance transactions that caused the Net Income (Loss) to be misstated by $192,547, $91,720, $107,058 and
$122,566 for 2005 and the first, second and third quarters of 2006, respectively. The previously issued consolidated
financial statements have been restated herein to reflect the correction of this error. See Note 2-CORRECTION OF AN
ERROR and Note 10 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA in the NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS for a presentation of the originally reported amounts, the related changes and the restated amounts.
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Premiums and Other Considerations, The following table details premiums and other considerations received during the
past three years.

2005

Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004

Home Service Life $ 6714926 $ 7044443 $  7,179911
Broker Life 3,719,307 3,847,481 3,504,600
Preneed Life 2,700,048 5,000,413 6,936,819
Dental 8,401,886 8,778,104 ' 9,322,936
Other Health 816,800 877,747 1,028,143
Total 3 22,372,967 $ 25,548,188 § 27,972,409

Home Service Life premium decreased 4.7% and 1.9% in 2006 and 2005, respectively. New sales began to decline in the
fourth quarter of 2005 and continued to decline in 2006 as a result of producer response to the Company’s introduction of a
variable first year commission program designed to improve persistency in this segment. The Company also lost its
regional representative for the Florida and Georgia region, as well as several producers in that region early in 2005. The
Company continues its efforts to atiract successful, experienced Home Service agents. In the fourth quarter of 2004, the
Company began to geographically expand the Home Service market, hiring a new regtonal representative to recruit new
agents in Ohio and Pennsylvania, Company management considers it a challenge to increase new sales even modestly,
while providing incentive to keep business in force for longer periods than we have historically experienced (i.e. improve
our persistency rate) in this segment.

The decrease in Broker Life premium of 3.3% during 2006 resulted primarily from decreases in ordinary and group
products, offset by the growth of $518,000 in the Fina! Expense product introduced in early 2005 in an effort to strengthen
the growth of this segment by better meeting the desires of our policyholders and agents. The increase in Broker Life
premium of 9.8% from 2004 to 2005 resulted primarily from the premiums on the final expense proeduct introduced in
2005.

The 46.0% and 27.9% decrease in Preneed Life premium during 2006 and 2005, respectively, resulted from the Company’s
modification of certain policy benefits and commissions (which resulted in a loss in the number of producers) and an
intentional refocusing of marketing efforts toward segments that the Company believes offer more positive potential in the
current environment, !

!
Dental premiums decreased 4.3% during 2006 as competition in this market continues to intensify. The company has
strengthened renewal underwriting standards in an effort to improve the loss ratio for this product. The result, as expecied,
was a decrease in premium and a decrease in the overall claims loss ratio from 69.7% in 2005 to 63.9 % in 2006. During
recent years, new business production has become increasingly competitive as larger providers expand their marketing
initiatives. However, the Company has historically maintained strong customer and agent loyalty by continuing to improve
customer service, including sales and administrative support functions. In January 2005 the Company began expanding its
capacity to administer more Dental business without increasing administration costs by replacing our group administration
system with a current state of the art system. The new system was placed in service in January 2006 and the Company
added additional functionality features throughout 2006 including a group website and a preferred provider network. The
Company plans to add future enhancements to include third party administration capability, online enrollment and auto
adjudication of claims. The Company also employed a senior marketing executive and a regional sales representative in
2006 to focus marketing efforts on the Dental segment.

The Company has not been actively marketing Other Health policies for several years. However, in response to agent
requests, certain cancer and disability protection products have been updated and promoted. Pricing, underwriting, and
claims experience on these products are closely monitored. Due to unsatisfactory financial results in this product line, the
Company discontinued selling new disability policies in October 2004, and increased premium rates approximately 35%
effective February 1, 2006 in the state of New Jersey, where the majority of such policies have been issued, resulting in a
decrease of $276,000 in the Net Loss for this segment in 2006 compared to 2005.
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Investments. The Company monitors its available-for-sale fixed maturities and equity securities to assure they are
strategically positioned within the current market environment. This practice has historically resulted in helding significant
equity security positions, which tend 1o dampen current income yields in favor of an overall total return focus. The
Company’s equity securities comprised 8.5% and 7.1% of its total investment portfolios at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The Company’s investment income yields were 5.3%, 5.1%, and 4.7% for 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. The 2006 yield increase resulted primarily from increasing interest rates on new investments, as well as
improved short-term yields during the year. Although the Company’s total return on investments has historically been
favorable, returns in recent years have been severely impacted by declines in the airline, biomedical, automobile,
telecommunications and technology sectors, declines in the fixed maturities market (due to increasing rates), a general
economic slump and the effect of terrorist events on the securities markets.

As detailed in the following table, net realized and unrealized investment (losses) totaled approximately ($2,228,000) and
{$3,356,000) for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company does not anticipate severe
deterioration in the securities markets although there is considerable volatility in the equities markets. At December 31,
2006 and 2005, the Company’s investment portfolios contained net unrealized gains (losses) outstanding of $(1,107,000)
and $1,124,000, respectively. Below is an approximate calculation of investment income yields and “total return” (defined
as yields including net investment income, net realized investment gains or losses and net change in the excess or deficit of
market values over book values of the investment portfolios or unrealized gains (losses)) yields for the five years ended
December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Investment Income $ 6675220 % 6905947 $ 6349451 % 5909696 $ 5,665,596
Gains and Losses:
Fixed Maturities:
Realized gains (losses) 433,660 107,400 633,275 67,903 (228,710)
Unrealized gains (losses) (2533,579) (2,772,067 (262,986) 1,079.228 1,130,402
Net Fixed Marurities (2,099,919) (2,664.667) 370,289 1,147,131 901,692
Equity Securities:
Realized gains (losses) (429,619) 672,865 2,234976 1,909,732 (2,241,058)
Unrealized gains (losses) 301,470 (1,364,263) (1,623,273) 2,622,024 (408,399)
Net Equity Securities (128,149) (691,398) 611,703 4,531,756 (2,649,457)
Total Gains and (Losses) (2,228,068) (3,356,065) 981,992 5,678,887 (1,747,765)
Total Returmn $ 4447152 3§ 3549882 % 7331443 $ 11,588,583 §$ 3,917,831
Average Cash and Investments $ 127,198,391 $ 134,800,118 § 135819,153 $ 131,440,555 $ 117,460,000
Yield — Income 5.20% 5.10% 4.710% 4.50% 4.80%
Yield — Tota! Retumn 3.50% 2.60% 5.40% 8.80% 3.30%

The Company realized significant gains on the sales of equity securities and high yield, below investment grade bonds
during 2004 and 2003 as we repositioned our portfolio to include a greater proportion of investment grade bonds. As bond
interest rates began to increase in 2005 and 2006, we experienced significant unrealized losses on our fixed maturity
portfolio {due to lower than market yields on our portfolio). Company management continues to monitor the equities and
fixed maturity markets, and to reposition the portfolios as considered appropriate.
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Segment Earnings. Pretax profit is shown below for the Company’s five business segments, along with total net realized
investment pains and interest expense.

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004

egment 1

Home Service Life b3 (176,484) $ (12,783) § (616,755)
Broker Life (110,698} (221,847 (961,413)
Prenced Life 376,774 464,393 (275,350)
Dental (58,985) (19'3,140) (150,335)
Other Health (29,975) (305,604) (303,463)
Segment Totals 632 (268,981) (2,307,316)
Net realized investment gains 4,041 ?89,265 2,868,250
Less Interest expense 486,645 379,519 354,200
Income (loss) before income taxes 3 (481,972) § 131,765 $ 206,734

The 2006 decrease in pretax income of $614,000 results from the negative effects of: (a) a decrease in net premiums earned
of $3,175,000 or 12.4% (Pre-need decreased $2,300,000, Dental decreased $376,000, Home Service decreased $330,000,
Broker Life decreased $128,000 (net of an increase in new final expense premiums of $901,000) and Other Health
decreased $41,000); (b) a decrease in investment and other income of $196,000; (c) a decrease in net realized investment
gains of $776,000; (d) an increase in general expenses and depreciation of $428,000 and (e) an increase in interest expense
of $107,000, offset by the positive effects of: (f) a decrease in policyholder benefits of $3,554,000; (g) a decrease in
commissions of $113,000; (h) an increase in acquisition costs deferred of $208,000 and (i) a decrease in amortization of
deferred policy acquisition costs and value of insurance acquired of $194,000.

The 2005 decrease in pretax income of $75,000 results from the positive effects of: (a) an' increase in investment and other
income of $577,000; (b) a decrease in policyholder benefits and commissions of $2,849,000; (c) a decrease in general
expenses and depreciation of $864,000 and (d) a decrease in amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and value of
insurance acquired of $236,000, offset by the negative effects of: (e) a decrease in net premiums earned of $2,425,000, or
8.7% (Preneed decreased $1,937,000, Dental decreased $545,000, Home Service decreased $135,000, Other Health
decreased $150,000, while Broker Life increased $343,000 (including new final expense premiums of $537,000)); (f) a
decrease in net realized investment gains of $2,088,000; (g} an increase in interest expense of $25,000 and (h) a decrease in
acquisition costs deferred of $63,000. :

Home Service Life :

In 2006 the Home Service Life segment benefited by $160,000 of higher investment and other income and a decrease of
$322,000 in benefits and reserves, offset by a $329,000 decrease in premium and a $317,000 increase in expenses
(including net deferral of policy acquisition costs), resulting in an increase in the segment loss of $164,000.

Broker Life
The $111,000 decrease in loss in the Broker Life segment is the result of a decrease of $334,000 in policyholder benefits, a

decrease in expenses of $197,000, offset by a decrease in premiums of $128,000 (primarily from decreases in ordinary and
group products, offset by the growth of $901,000 in the Final Expense product), and a decrease in investment and other
income of $292,000.

Pre-need Life
The $88,000 decrease in profit in the Preneed life segment for 2006 is the result of a decrease of $2,300,000 in premiums,

and a decrease of $45,000 in investment and other income, offset by a decrease of $1,849,000 in policyholder benefits, a
decrease in commissions of $247,000 and a decrease of $161,000 in expenses (including net deferral of policy acquisition
costs). During 2002, the Company accepted a significant amount of single-premium business, which generally has higher
than average mortality rates. At that time, significant management and marketing resources were devoted to this business.
To improve profitability, annual benefit growth rates were reduced in early 2003 and again in September 2004. Also, twice
during 2002, certain commission rates were reduced and agent contracts revised to encourage production of the more
profitable multi-pay products. Management has not focused marketing resources on this segment for the past several years.
As a result, we have experienced significant declines in premiums and policy benefits, generating a segment profit for the
past two years. :
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Dental
Information regarding Dental profitability is included below. The “contribution margin” shown below is a direct margin
without allocable investment income and general expense.

Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Premium $ 8.401886 § 8,778,104 § 9,322,936
Claims and Reserves 5 5,369,335 % 6,114,254 $§ 6,729,685
Contribution Margin b 2078614 $ 1,606,266 $ 1,393,735
Claim Ratio 63.90% 69.70% 72.20%

The contribution margin increased in 2006 by $472,000 due primarily to the Company’s aggressive renewal underwriting
and re-rating. Although premiums decreased $376,000 in 2006, benefits decreased $745,000, and commissions decreased
$104,000. Expenses for the Dental segment increased $328,000 due to the increased marketing resources allocated to this
segment (the Company employed a senior marketing executive for this segment in August of 2005, a regional
representative in the fourth quarter of 2005 and an additional senior executive in September 2006).

The contribution margin increased in 2005 by $213,000 from 2004 due primarily to the Company’s aggressive renewal and
re-rating as well as not renewing a large group with a particularly high morbidity rate in December 2004. The Company
has encountered more competition as additional insurers continue to expand in the Dental market and Dental providers
continue to provide higher levels of care to patients. The Company is continuing its ongoing efforts to maintain
profitability in this line by reconfiguring products to provide adequate margins for the various dental procedures, utilizing a
third-party company to provide expert assistance with ongoing adjudication of claims, and continuing its program of
aggressive renewal underwriting and re-rating. We are also focusing significant marketing resources to this segment to
create significant long-term premium growth in the segment.

Other Health

The decrease in the segment loss of $276,000 in the Other Health is primarily the result of a decrease in policyholder
benefits of $304,000 partially offset by a decrease in premiums of $41,000. The Company has not devoted significant
marketing effort toward its Other Health products in recent years. However, during 2002 through 2004, a significant
increase in disability claims occurred, with a concentration in New Jersey. The Company implemented a 35% rate increase
on its disability products in New Jersey effective in early 2006, and discontinued accepting applications for this policy in
New Jersey in the fall of 2004.

Income Taxes. Historically, the Company has experienced a relatively low effective current income tax rate, due primarily
to the small life insurance company deduction, along with operating loss carryforwards and capital loss carryforwards. The
effective expense (benefit) rate is 54% tn 2006 and 0.0% in 2005.

The small life insurance company deduction allows the Life Insurance Subsidiaries to reduce their taxable income by 60%
before computing their current provisions for regular or alternative minimum tax. However, for purposes of computing
deferred income tax liabilities under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, *Accounting for Income Taxes”, the Company is
precluded from assuming the small life insurance company deduction will be available in the future. Accordingly, by
disallowing this deduction, SFAS No. 109 significantly increases the deferred taxes on the Life Insurance Subsidiaries’
temporary differences. Thus, when a significant increase or decrease occurs in the Company’s net temporary differences,
the related deferred tax is computed using the 34% federal tax rate, whereas tax may actually be paid on these net liabilities
(when realized) at a rate potentially as low as 17% (the alternative minimum tax rate after application of the allowable
small life insurance company deduction). The Company’s gross deferred federal income tax liabilities and assets are more
fully discussed in Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The gross deferred tax assets are offset, to
some extent, by valuation allowances related to the Company and to the Life Insurance Subsidiaries and then offset against
existing deferred tax liabilities. The Company’s valuation allowance is designed to reduce deferred tax assets to their
estimated ultimate realization value,

Statutory Insurance Information, For insurance regulatory and rating purposes, the Insurance Subsidiaries report on the
basis of statutory accounting principles (“SAP"). In recen: years, various state insurance departments and the NAIC have
expressed concern, essentially about the “rate of return” earned by holders of small face amount life policies, potentially
including Prenced policies. Although the Company does not believe calculating a simple “rate of return” or premium “pay-
back” measure is meaningful for traditional life insurance products, certain state insurance regulators are considering
actions that could alter the profitability of existing contracts or eliminate small face amount policies as a viable product
offering.
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During December 2002, the Company strengthened the statutory capital position of Citizens Security by acquiring
$2,000,000 of Citizens Security redeemable preferred stock. During January 2001, the Company contributed 100% of the
capital stock of Citizens Insurance to Citizens Security. The statutory value of this contribution was $3,540,555. Citizens
Security has reported its investments in United Liberty and Citizens Insurance on the equity method of accounting, since
their acquisitions in 1998 and 2001, respectively. However, beginning in 2001, new rules changed the statutory equity
method of accounting to preclude a parent insurer from recording as income, its share of undistributed subsidiary earnings.
For 2006, 2005, and 2004, Citizens Security reported as income the $99,900, $250,000 and $1,174,000 respectively, of
dividend distributions that it received from United Liberty and Citizens Insurance. At December 31, 2006, Citizens
Security reported its investments in United Liberty and Citizens Insurance at their statutory equity values of $2,281,472 and
$2,501,700 respectively. To provide a more detailed understanding of Citizens Security's operations, shown below are SAP
basis net income (loss), pretax net operating income (loss), statutory capital and surplus, asset valuation reserves, and
capital ratios for Citizens Security for the five years ended December 31, 2006.

Pretax Net Statutory Asset
Year Ended Net Operating Capital and Valuation Capital
December 31 Income (Loss)  Income (Loss) Surplus Reserves' Ratio?
2006 $ (14,889) § 20M4 § 11296774 § 1,501,070 12.19%
2005 $ 1314175 § 461,953 § 11,560,743 $ 1,579,280 12.37%
2004 $ 1,636,500 % 146,794 $ 10,755,568 $ 2,049,370 12.00%
2003 $ 706,397 $ (496,618) § 11,128,656 § 2,637,741 13.10%
2002 $ (1,184,496) § (64815) $ 9903639 $ 862,732 11.60%

! Asset Vatuation Reserves are statutory liabilities that act as contingency reserves in the event of extraordinary losses on
invested assets and as a buffer for policyholders’ surplus to reduce the impact of realized and unrealized investment losses.
The 2002 through 2006 amounts also include United Liberty’s asset valuation reserves. Citizens Insurance does not have an
Asset Valuation Reserve.

? Represents Statutory Capital and Surplus plus Asset Valuation Reserves divided by invested assets plus cash.

The following table shows the changes to Citizens Security’s statutory capital and surplus for the five years ended
December 31, 2006.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of the year $11,560,743 $10,755,568 $11,128,656 $9,903,639 $9,687,289
Operating income (loss) 29,714 478,985 264,271 (352,170) (42,778)
Net realized gains (losses) (44,602) 835,190 1,372,229 1,058,567 (1,141,718)
Net unrealized gains (losses) 368,011 (473,395) (1,801,699 2,414,923 (950,278)
Change in deferred income taxes (327,038) (639,677) (555,456) ' 85,666 {190,000)
Change in nonadmitted assets (388,488) 147,526 (202,550) ' (223,514) 475,124
Change in Asset Valuation Reserve 97,527 456,546 550,117 (1,758,455) 66,000
Additional paid in surplus 907 - - . - 2,000,000
Balance at the end of the year $11,296,774 $11,560,743 $10,755,568  $11,128,656 $9,903,639

In addition to the statutory totals shown above, Citizens Insurance generated statutory net income of approximately
$20,000, $56,000, and $76,000 during 2006, 2003 and 2002, respectively without remitting any dividends to its parent.
Citizens Insurance generated statutory net income of $22,000 and $56,000 and paid dividends of $250,000 and $1,174,000
to Citizens Security in 2005 and 2004, respectively. United Liberty generated statutory net income (loss) of approxirnately
$280,000, $117,000, ($692,000), 536,000, and ($328,000), during 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively and
remitted dividends to its parent of $99,900, and $54,000 in 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Statutory capital and surplus, specifically the component called surplus, is used to fund the expansion of an insurance
company's first year individual life and accident and health sales. The first year commission and underwriting expenses on
such sales will often exceed first year premiums. Accordingly, a statutory loss (surplus strain) often occurs on these sales
during the first policy year. Historically, the Company’s level of life insurance sales has not significantly impacted
statutory surplus.
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The Company completed a strategic review of its products and operations, resulting in the mitigation of the significant
losses incurred in the Preneed Life business segment in prior years and strengthening the potential for future profitability in
the Broker Life, Home Service Life and Dental segments by increasing premiums, strengthening underwriting policies,
modifying commissions, and where possible, lowering interest crediting or policy growth rates.

CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY

The Company borrowed $2,000,000 from its Chairman in December 2002 to strengthen the statutory capital position of its
principal insurance subsidiary. The Company borrowed an additional $1,000,000, $1,000,000 and $1,330,000 in 2003,
2005 and 2006, respectively from its Chairman for general operating capital, including bank debt service. These
borrowings are considered current debt as a result of a 90-day call provision in the loan agreement. The Company also has
$208,337 of commercial bank debt outstanding, with an equal amount maturing in April 2007 and July 2007. During the
first half of 2005 the Company did not comply with a loan covenant (debt to eamings ratio) and did not comply with
another covenant (borrower’s equity) at June 30, 2006 on this debt and received a waiver from the lender of each violation
through June 30, 2006. In return for the waivers the Company’s Chairman agreed to personally guarantee the outstanding
bank debt. The Company was in compliance with the debt covenant for the last two quarters of 2006. Regarding the
currently scheduled debt repayments, the Company believes its available resources will be adequate to service 2007
commercial bank debt obligations. In addition, the Company’s Chairman has expressed potential willingness to loan the
Company an additional $200,000 if necessary, which would service debt obligations through 2007, Additional information
regarding debt obligations is included in Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

A summary of all known commitments of the Company as of December 31, 2006, including the aforementioned
borrowings, and an estimate {(based on reasonable assumptlons and anticipated trends) of payments to be made for future
policy benefits and contract claims, is as follows:

Contractual Obligations Payments Due by Period
Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 years 3-5years  More than 5 years
Future Policy Benefits and Contract Claims (a) $ 125376466 % 0606344 $ 13274970 $ 12,197478 § 90297674
Note Payable to Bank 215,560 215,560 - - -
Note Payable to Related Party 5,823,025 5,823,025 - - .
Operating Leases 184,383 49,914 115,371 19,098 -

(a) Anticipated cash benefit payments not including any future earnings or additional premium

Management is not aware of any other commitments or unusual events that could materially affect the Company’s capital
resources.

The Company provided (used) approximately $(2,668,000), $138,000 and $913,000 of cash flow from operating activities
during 2006, 2005 and 2004, rcspectwely The fluctuations are principally attributable to a decrease in Preneed Life
premiums in all three years.

Cash provided by (used in) investment activities of $8,106,000, $316,000, and $(2,464,000) during 2006, 2005, and 2004
respectively, relates primarily to investing additional Preneed Life premiums in fixed maturity securities in 2004, primarily
from the sale of short-term investments for $612,000, less approxlmate]y $300,000 used to acquire new equipment in 2005
and pnmanly sales and maturmcs of securities in excess of new investments, offset by approxxmately $652,000 used to
acquire new equipment in 2006.

Cash used in financing activities during 2006 of $1,024,000 includes $1,167,000 of debt repayments, $672,000 of net
withdrawals of policyholder deposits and $515,000 used to repurchase common stock of the Company, offset by additional
borrowings of $1,330,000 from the Company’s Chairman. The $1,592,000 of cash used in financing activities during 2005
includes $1,416,000 of debt repayments and $1,176,000 of net withdrawals of policyholder deposits, offset by additional
borrowings of $1,000,000 from the Company’s Chairman. The $2,346,000 of cash used in financing activities during 2004
includes $1,342,000 of debt repayments, $902,000 of net withdrawals of policyholder deposits and $102,000 used to
repurchase common stock of the Company.
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The Company is subject to various market risks. However, the most significant such risks relate to fluctuations in prices of
equity securities and interest rates (which affect market prices of fixed maturity securities). Historically, total returns on the
Company’s equity portfolio have been favorable and the Company has successfully managed the risk of equity security
price fluctuations over many years. The Company devotes significant attention to the equity markets and repositions the
Company’s portfolio upon detection of adverse risk trends associated with individual securities or overall markets. The
Company also manages market risks associated with investments in option securities, as described in Note 3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The fair value of the Company’s equity portfolio was. approximately $9,429,000 and
$8,580,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Accordingly, a 10% decline in equity prices would have reduced
the fair value of the Company’s equity portfolio by $943,000 and $858,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The average cost value of the Company’s equity portfolio was $7,995,000 and $7,559,000 during 2006 and 2005,
respectively. |

r
Regarding interest rate risk, the value of the Company’s fixed-maturity investment portfolio will increase or decrease in an

inverse relalionship with fluctuations in interest rates while net investment income earned on newly-acquired fixed-
maturities increases or decreases in direct relationship with interest rate changes. Management estimates that a 100 basis
point increase in interest rates (“rate shock™) would have decreased the fair value of 1tsr$101 1 million fixed maturity
portfolio by approximately 5.5% or $5.3 million at December 31, 2006 and 6.3% or $7.1 million at December 31, 2005.
From an income perspective, the Company does not believe rising interest rates present a significant risk, as essentially al}
of the Company’s policy liabilities bear fixed rates. However, approximately 38% of policy liabilities contain provisions
permitting interest or benefit adjustments at the discretion of the Boards of Directors of the Insurance Subsidiaries. The
Company’s cash flow testing (described below) indicates that overall profitability will generally be enhanced in rising
interest rate scenarios. From a liquidity perspective, the Company’s fixed rate policy liabilities have been relatively
insensitive to interest rate fluctuations. Accordingly, the Company believes gradual increases in interest rates do not
present a significant liquidity exposure. The Company monitors economic conditions on a regular basis and manages this
interest rate risk primarily by adjusting the duration of its fixed-maturity portfolio. Historically, the Company has
maintained conservative durations in its fixed-maturity portfolio. During 2006 and 2003, the Company decreased durations
of the fixed maturity portfolio. At December 31, 2006 cash and fixed-maturity investments with maturities of less than five
years equaled approximately 24% of total policy liabilities compared to approxlmately 19% at December 31, 2005.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if interest rates rise significantly in a short timeframe, there can be no assurance that the life
insurance industry, including the Company, would not experience increased levels of surfenders and reduced sales, and
thereby be materially adversely affected. !

Interest expense on the Company’s debt varies quarterly and is therefore also subject to interest rate risk. For its
commercial bank debt, the Company elects the lower of the prime lending rate or the one- month LIBOR rate plus 2.75%.
For its related party debt, the interest rate is the higher of 6% or the commercial bank prime lending rate plus 1%. At
December 31, 2006, the weighted average rate on the Company’s $5,538,337 borrowings was 9.20%. The Company
believes its current liquidity position and profitability levels are adequate to guard against thi;s interest rate risk.

In addition to the measures described above, the Life Insurance Subsidiaries comply with the NAIC promulgated Standard
Valuation Law (“SVL”) which specifies minimum reserve levels and prescribes methods for determining them, with the
intent of enhancing solvency. The SVL also requires the Company to perform annual cash flow testing for its Life
Insurance Subsidiaries. This testing is demgned 1o ensure that statutory reserve levels will mamtmn adequate protection in
a variety of potential interest rate scenarios. The Actuarial Standards Board of the American Academy of Actuaries also
requires cash flow testing as a basis for the actuarial opinion on the adequacy of the reserves which is a required part of the
annual statutory reporting process. ‘

|
Cash flow testing projects cash inflows from assets and cash outflows for liabilities in various assumed economic and yield
curve scenarios. This is 2 dynamic process, whereby the performance of the assets and liabilities is directly related to the
scenario assumptions. (An example would involve the credited interest rate on annuity products and how such rates vary
depending upon projected earnings rates, which are based upon asset performance under a pa{rticular economic scenario.)

The Life Insurance Subsidiaries’ most recent cash flow testing, which was completed in February 2007, involved a review
of two basic measures. The first was the value of free market surplus, which is defined as the difference between the
projected market value of assets and liabilities at the end of the analysis period (typically 10-30 years). Deficits could
indicate the need for corrective action depending upen the severity and the number of scenarios in which a deficit appeared.
A second measure involved distributable earnings. Negative earnings for extended durations might impair the ability of the
Life Insurance Subsidiaries to continue without exhausting surplus. Again, depending upon severity and frequency,
corrective measures might be needed. Based on results of the testing, no corrective measures were indicated at the current
30 '




time. However, such testing is ongoing and dynamic in nature and future events in the interest and equity markets or a
significant change in the composition of Life Insurance Subsidiaries’ business could negatively impact testing results and
require the initiation of corrective measures.

Any necessary comrective measures could take one or more forms. The duration of existing assets might not match well
with those of the liabilities. Certain liabilities, such as those associated with indemnity accident and health, short-term
disability and group dental products, are short-term in nature and are best matched with cash and short-term investments.
By contrast, whole life insurance, which involves lifetime obligations, is usually best matched by longer duration
maturities. In the event there are insufficient assets of these types, a repositioning of the investment portfolio might be
undertaken.

Initially balanced durations do not guarantee positive future results. Asset type, quality, and yield will vary depending
upon the economic scenario tested. Liabilities will be similarly affected. Projected reinvestment yields may cause overall
yields to fall below those required to support projected liabilities. In that event, portfolio realignment might involve the
type, quality and yield of investments rather than duration. Alternatively, additional reserve amounts could be allocated to
cover any future shortfalls.

The above discussion centers on asset management. Other possible corrective measures might involve liability
realignment. The Company’s marketing plan could be modified to emphasize certain product types and reduce others.
New business levels could be varied in order to find the optimum level. Management believes that the Company's current
liquidity, current bond portfolio maturity distribution and cash flow from operations give it substantial resources to
administer its existing business and fund growth generated by direct sales.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

All statements, trend analyses and other information contained in this report relative to markets for the Company’s products
and trends in the Company's operations or financial results, as well as other statements including words such as
“anticipate”, “believe”, “plan”, “‘estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, and other similar expressions, constitute forward-looking
statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are subject to
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results to be materially different from those

contemplated by the forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among other things:

= the market value of the Company’s investments, including stock market performance and prevailing
interest rate levels (see the Cash Flow and Liguidity section of this Item 7 - Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations),

* customer and agent response to new products, distribution channels and marketing initiatives, including
exposure to unrecoverable advanced commissions;

= mortality, morbidity, lapse rates, and other factors which may affect the profitability of the Company’s
insurance products;

s regulatory changes or actions, including those relating to regulation of insurance products and insurance
companies (see the State Insurance Regulation section of Item | - Business),

» ratings assigned to the Company and its subsidiaries by independent rating organizations which the
Company believes are important to the sale of its products;

= general economic conditions and increasing competition which may affect the Company’s ability to sell
its products;

= the Company’s ability to achieve anticipated levels of operating efficiencies and meet cash requirements
based upon projected liquidity sources;

* unanticipated adverse litigation outcomes (see Jtem 3 — Legal Proceedings); and

* changes in the Federal income tax laws and regulations, which may affect the relative tax advantages of
some of the Company’s products.

There can be no assurance that other factors not currently anticipated by management will not also materially and
adversely affect the Company’s results of operations.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Risk management includes the identification and measurement of various forms of risk, the establishment of risk thresholds
and the creation of processes intended to maintain risks within these thresholds while optimizing returns on the underlying
assets or liabilities. Management considers risk management an integral part of managing our core business.

The Company is subject to various market risks. Market risk is the risk of change in thé value of securities held in our
portfolio primarily as the resuit of changes in interest rates or equity prices. The Company devotes significant attention to
the equities and the fixed maturities markets and repositions the Company's portfolio upon detection of adverse risk trends
associated with individual issuers or overall markets. As part of our asset/liability management the Company, in
consultation with consulting actuaries, performs an asset adequacy analysis annually, employing dynamic models of assets
and liabilities to project financial results under several sensitivity scenarios of changing assumptions. For 2006 none of the
eleven deterministic scenarios produced a negative market value at the end of the thirtieth projection year.

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk are further described in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ in the section “Cash Flow and Liquidity” of this Form 10-K
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There has been no change in accountants nor have there been any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosure

requiring disclosure pursuant to the Instructions to this Item. ‘

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer, with the participation of management, have evaluated
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15(e)) as of
December 31, 2006. Based on the evaluation, they concluded that the controls and procedures are effective except for those
controls and procedures related to certain reinsurance transactions that did not prevent or detect the accounting errors
identified in Notes 2 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements. Controls and procedures were subsequently revised to
remediate this material weakness. There have been no other significant changes in the Company's internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

I

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

There is no other information requiring disclosure pursuant to the Instructions to this Item.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Shareholders and Board of Directors
Citizens Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Citizens Financial Corporation and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presemtation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In cur opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Citizens Financial Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in ail material respects the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, during 2006 the Company changed its method of
accounting for certain reinsurance contracts to conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The Company
has retroactively restated its 2005 consolidated financial statements to implement this change as of January 1, 2005, the
inception date of the initial reinsurance contract related to the change.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Cincinnati, Ohio
March 26, 2007
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Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries [
Consolidated Statements of Operations :

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As R'estated) 2004
Revenues: '
Premiums and other considerations $ 23,310,214 % 26,529,799 % 29,172,002
Premiums ceded (937,247) {981,611) (1,199,593)
Net premiums earned 22,372,967 25,548,138 27,972,409
Net investment income 6,675,220 6,905,947 6,349,451
Net realized investment gains 4,041 780,265 2,868,250
Other income 223,276 188,507 168,431
Total Revenues 29,275,504 33,422,907 37,358,541
!
Policy Benefits and Expenses: !
Policyholder benefits 19,498,161 20,:908,054 22,805,596
Policyholder benefits ceded (1,404,292) (1,074,974) (1,214,013)
Net benefits 18,093,869 19,833,080 21,591,583
Increase {decrease) in net benefit reserves (1,388,195) 407,512 1,280,849
Interest credited on policyholder deposits 591,164 §10,506 653,111
Commissions 4,625,884 4,738,463 4,912,729
General expenses 6,910,230 6,'646,721 7,550,253
Interest expense 486,645 379,519 354,200
Policy acquisition costs deferred (1,328,861) (1,121,029) (1,183,865)
Amortization expense: |
Deferred policy acquisition costs 991,310 1,127,52] 1,339,725
Value of insurance acquired 347,658 405,728 429,707
Depreciation expense 427,772 263,121 223,515
Total Policy Benefits and Expenses 29,757,476 33,291,142 37,151,807
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) (481,972) 131,765 206,734
Income tax expense (benefit ) 353,932 - (48,879
Net Income (Loss) 3 (835,904) § 131,765 % 255,613
Net Income (.I.oss) per Common Share, basic and diluted $ 0.51) % ., 008 § 0.15

See Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements.
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Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

2005
December 31 2006 (As Restated)
ASSETS
Investments:
Securities available-for-sale, at fair value:
Fixed maturities (amortized cost of $102,758,531
and $112,087,958 in 2006 and 2005, respectively) $ 101,061,766 § 112,924,772
Equity securities (cost of $8,840,149 and
$8,292,389 in 2006 and 2003, respectively) 9,429,265 8.580,035
Investment real estate 3,020,878 3,034,094
Policy loans 4,452,885 4,495,291
Short-term investments 40,000 40,000
Total Investments 118,004,794 129,074,192
Cash and cash equivalents 7,966,604 3,552,969
Accrued investment income 1,597,292 1,683,486
Reinsurance recoverable 2,768,022 2,693,719
Premiums receivable 216,697 266,368
Property and equipment, net 2,189,338 1,870,848
Deferred policy acquisition costs 10,634,244 10,226,741
Value of insurance acquired 1,936,516 2,284,174
Goodwil! 755,782 755,782
Income taxes receivable 52,503 63,174
Net deferred income tax asset 279,234 282,905
Other assets §78,523 470,439
Total Assets $ 147,279,549 § 153,224,797

See Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

2005
December 31 2006 (As Restated)
LIABILITIES
|
Policy liabilities:
Future policy benefits b 109,5 10.024:. $ 111,021,027
Policyholder deposits 14,319,829 14,716,369
Policy and contract claims 1,546,613 1,888,050
Uneamed premiums 112,323 128,584
Other 181,818 715,822
Total Policy Liabilities 125,671,107 128,469,852
Note payable — bank 208,337 1,375,003
: Note payable — related party 5,330,000 4,000,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,954,060 2,135,938
Total Liabilities 133,163,504 135,980,793
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 3, 11 and 12)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
1,588,011 and 1,671,628 shares issued and
outstanding in 2006 and 2005, respectively 1,588,011 1,671,628
Additional paid-in capital 6,650,197 7,081,921
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,056,024) 720,690
Retained earnings 6,933,861 7,769,765
Total Sharcholders’ Equity 14,116,045 17,244,004
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 147,279,54§ 5 153,224,797

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

Common stock, 6,000,000 shares authorized;
|
|
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Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional Other Total Comprehensive
Commen Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Shareholders’ Loss
Stock Capital Income (Loss) Eamings Equity Total
I
Balance at January 1,2004 $1,685228  $7,170,321 $4,595473  §7,382,387 320,833,409 |
Net Income 255,613 255613 | $ 255613
Decrease in unrealized apppreciation of |
available-for-sale securities (1,232,671) (1,232671) | (1,232671)
Comprehensive loss I'$ (977,058)
Common stock repurchases (13,600) (88,400) (102,000) |
Balance at December 31, 2004 1,671,628 7,081,921 3,362,802 7,638,000 19,754,351 |
Net Income, as restated 131,765 131,765 | $ 131,765
Decrease in unrealized appreciation of |
available-for-sale securities (2,642,112) (2642,112) | {(2,642,112)
Comprehensive loss, as restated | § (2,510,347
Balance at December 31, 2005, as restated 1,671,628 7,081,921 720,690 7,769,765 17,244,004 |
Net Loss (835,904) (835904) | §  (835,904)
Increase in unrealized depreciation of |
available-for-sale securities (1,776,714) (1,776,714} | (1,776,714)*
Camprehensive loss 1§ (2,612,618)
Common stock repurchases (83,617) (431,724) (515,341) |
Balance at December 31, 2006 $1588011  $6,650,197 § (1,056,024) $6,933,861 $14,116,045

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries !
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004

|
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

t
Net income (loss) h ] (835,904) $ 131,765 % 255,613
Adjustments reconciling net income (loss) to f
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Interest credited on policyholder deposits 591,165 6:10,506 653,111
Provision for amortization and depreciation, |
net of deferrals 437 879 675,341 809,082
Amortization of premium and accretion L
of discount on securities purchased, net 7,902 (13,384) 5,813
Net realized investment gains (4,041) (780,265) (2,868,250)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: :
. Benefit reserves (1,388,195) 407,512 1,280,849
| Claim liabilities (341,437) (73,3 17y 208,118
Reinsurance recoverable (74,303) 41,952 98,551
Accrued investment income 86,194 (46,165) 48,455
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities (1,209,710) (§57,646) 445118
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 344,218 (3‘50,634) 3,600
Income taxes payable (receivable) 33,957 192,007 (117,326)
Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities (2,352,275) 137,672 912,734

Cash ¥Flows from Investing Activities:
Securities available-for-sale: ‘
Purchases — fixed maturities (8,091,857) (24,210,862) (44,555,179)

Purchases — equity securities (15,972,560) (1 1,3:23,893) (13,360,972)

Sales and maturities — fixed maturities 17,866,241 24,273,864 38,454,375

Sales — equity securities 14,887,667 11,564,437 16,320,125
Investment management and brokerage account fees - oos (355,241)
Short-term investments sold - QI 1,766 -
Additions to real estate (152,622) (73,771) (83,757)
Disposals (additions) to property and equipment, net (498,766) (281,999) 896,826
Other investing activities, net 67,518 (243,356) 219,351
Net Cash provided by (used in) in Investing Activities 8,105,621 3:16, 180 (2,464,472)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: F
Policyholder deposits 534,525 587,618 754,064
Policyholder withdrawals (1,522,229) (1,763,446) (1,655,945)
Proceeds from additional borrowings- related party 1,330,000 £,000,000 -
Payments on note payable - bank (1,166,666) (1 ,4_16,666) (1,341,666)
Repurchases of common stock (515,341) L. (102,000)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (1,339,711) (l,§92,494) (2,345,547
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,413,635 (1,138,642) (3,897,285)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 3,552,969 4,691,611 8,588,896
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 5 7,966,604 % 3,552,969 § 4,691,611

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2006

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1--NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation and Presentation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Citizens Financial Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Citizens Security Life Insurance Company (“Citizens
Security”), United Liberty Life Insurance Company (“United Liberty™), Citizens Insurance Company (“Citizens Insurance™),
Citizens Security Benefit Services, Inc. (“Citizens Security Benefits”) and Corporate Realty Service, Inc. (“Corporate Realty™).
These entities are collectively hereinafter referred to as the Company. United Liberty and Citizens Insurance are also wholly
owned subsidiaries of Citizens Security. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in
consolidation.

Nature of Operations. The Company engages primarily in the business of life insurance, annuities and accident and health
insurance through Citizens Security and United Liberty (“the Life Insurance Subsidiaries™). The Life Insurance Subsidiaries
offer life, fixed-rate annuity and accident and health insurance products to individuals and groups through independent agents.
Citizens Insurance was acquired during 1999 and is licensed as a property and casualty insurer in six states but currently has no
business in force. Corporate Realty manages the Company’s real estate along with two other properties affiliated with the
Company’s Chairman (see Note 15).

The individual life insurance products currently offered by the Life Insurance Subsidiaries consist of traditional whole life
insurance and universal life insurance policies. Citizens Security also sells group life and accidental death and dismemberment
policies. The fixed-rate annuity products offered by Citizens Security consist of flexible premium deferred annuities, life
policy annuity riders, and single premium deferred annuities. Citizens Security’s individual accident and health insurance
products provide coverage for monthly income during periods of hospitalization, scheduled reimbursement for specific hospital
and surgical expenses and cancer treatments, and lump sum payments for accidental death or dismemberment, while the group
accident and health products provide coverage for short and long-term disability, income protection and dental procedures.

Citizens Security is licensed to sell products in the District of Columbia and 20 states primarily located in the South and
Southeast. United Liberty is licensed to sell products in 21 states primarily located in the South, Midwest, and West. United
Liberty's ongoing sales efforts are focused primarily in nine states where Citizens Security is not licensed.

The Life Insurance Subsidiaries market their portfolio of products through the personal producing general agent distribution
system and presently have approximately 3,300 sales representatives. Many of these also represent other insurance carriers.
Approximately 1,000 of the agents specialize in the Home Service market while approximately 500 are Preneed representatives
who market through funeral homes. These markets consist primarily of individuals who desire whole life policies with policy
limits typically below $10,000.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP"”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Investments. The Company classifies fixed maturities and equity securities as “available-for-sale.” Available-for-sale
securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), net of applicable deferred income taxes and adjustments to related deferred policy acquisition costs. Mark-to-market
accounting is used for equity options embedded in convertible bonds and all other derivatives. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are reported currently as realized gains or losses.

Company management periodically evaluates whether the declines in fair value of investments are other-than-temporary.
These evaluations consist of a review of qualitative and quantitative factors, including analysis of the issuer’s competitive
position in its markets, deterjoration in the financial condition of the issuer, downgrades of the security by a rating agency, and
other publicly available issuer-specific news or general market conditions. For investments in companies with no quoted
market price, the Company considers similar qualitative and quantitative factors and also takes into account the cost of the
investment, the type of investment, subsequent purchases of the same or similar investments, the current financial position and
operating results of the issuer, and such other factors as may be relevant. Declines in fair values of securities deemed to be
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other-than-temporary are included in the results of operations as realized investment losses in the period of determination.
Determining what constitutes an other-than-temporary decline involves significant judgment. Declines in fair value below cost
not considered other-than-temporary in the current period could be considered other-than-temporary in a future period and
reduce earnings to the extent of the write-down.

For purposes of computing realized gains and losses on fixed maturities and equity securities sold, the carrying amount is
determined using the specific-identification method. Policy loans are carried at unpaid balances. Investment real estate is
carried at depreciated cost. Short-term investments, which consist of certificates of deposit, are carried at cost, which
approximates fair value, Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments w1th matarities of three months or less
at the date of purchase and are also carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs. Commissions and other policy acquisition costs that vary with, and are primarily related to,
the production of new insurance contracts are deferred, to the extent recoverable from future policy revenues and gross profits,
and amortized over the life of the related contracts, See Premiums, Benefits and Expenses rega‘,rding amortization methods.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment, including the home office building, are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, using principally the straight-line method of depreciation. Accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2006 was
$2,800,971 ($2,422,555 at December 31, 2005). |

Goodwill and Value of Insurance Acquired. Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price of purchased subsidiaries, over
amounts assigned (based on estimated fair values at the date of acquisition) to the identifiable net assets acquired. The
recovery of these assets is dependent on the fair value of the business to which they relate. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill is subject to anpual impairment tests based on the estimated fair value of the
respective assets. There are numerous assumptions and estimates underlying the determination of the estimated fair value of
goodwill. Different valuation methods and assumptions can produce significantly different resu]ts that could affect the amount
of any potential impairment charge that might be required to be recognized. During both 2006 and 2005, the Company, in
consultation with its consulting actuaries, concluded that no impairment adjustment was necess‘ary for its goodwill.

Value of insurance acquired is recorded for the estimated value assigned to the insurance in force of the purchased subsidiaries
at the dates of acquisition. The assigned value is amortized over the expected remaining life of the insurance in force using
methods consistent with that used for amortization of policy acquisition costs (as described under Premiums, Benefits and
Expenses). At December 31, 2006, accumulated amortization was $7,359,858 ($7,012,200 at I?mcmber 31, 2005).

Benefit Reserves and Policyholder Deposits. Traditional life and accident and health insurance products include those
contracts with fixed and guaranteed premiums and benefits and consist principally of whole-life and term insurance policies,
limited-payment life insurance policies and certain annuities with life contingencies. Reserves on such policies are based on
assumed investment yields that range from 5% to 7%. This assumptlon is based on management s expectations for long term
total returns, and has been reduced for policies issued beginning in 2005 in light of the, ‘extended low returns we have
experienced in recent years. Reserves on traditional life and accident and health insurance products are determined using the
net level premium method based on future investment yields, mortality, withdrawals, and other assumptions, including
dividends on participating policies. Such assumptions are based on past experience and 'include provisions for possible
unfavorable deviation.

'
|

Benefit reserves and policyholder contract deposits on universal life, other interest-sensitive life products and investment-type
products are determined using the retrospective deposit method and consist of policy account balances, before deducting
surrender charges, which accrue to the benefit of the policyholder.

Participating insurance business constituted approximately 0.6%, 5% and 5% of ordinary life‘ insurance in force at December
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and 0.4%, 3%, and 3% of annualized ordinary life premium in force at December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively. Participating dividends are determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Reserves on insurance policies acquired by purchase are based on assumptions considered appropriate as of the date of
purchase. Assumed investment yields for such acquired policies range from 5.5% to 9.0%.

Premiums. Benefits and Expenses. Premiums for traditional individual life (including Prcneed) and accident and health
pohc:es are recognized as revenue when legally collectible from policyholders. Benefit claims (including an estimated
provision for claims incurred but not reported), benefit reserve changes and expenses (except those deferred) are charged to
expense as incurred. Deferred policy acquisition costs related to traditional life and accident arnd health policies are charged to

42 !




expense over the life of the policy using methods and assumptions consistent with those used in estimating liabilities for future
policy benefits. In determining whether a premium deficiency exists on short-duration policies, management does not give
consideration to investment income.

Revenues for universal life and investment-type products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy initiation,
administrative surrender fees and investment income. Expenses include interest credited to policyholder account balances,
incurred administrative expenses and benefit payments in excess of policy account balances. Deferred policy acquisition costs
related to universal life and investment-type products are amortized in relation to the incidence of expected gross profits over
the life of the policies. Expected gross profits are reviewed at each reporting period, and to the extent actual experience varies
from that previously assumed, the effects of such variances are recorded in the current period.

Liabilities for Policy Claims. Policy claim liabilities are based on known liabilities plus estimated future liabilities developed
from trends of historical data applied to current exposures. These liabilities are closely monitored and adjustments for changes
in experience are made in the period identified.

Federal Income Taxes. The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes are
provided for cumulative temporary differences between balances of assets and liabilities determined under GAAP and balances
determined for tax reporting purposes.

Earnings Per Share. Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year.

Note 2-CORRECTION OF AN ERROR

While preparing the 2006 consolidated financial statements, the Company discovered an error in the compilation and reporting
of certain reinsurance transactions that caused the net income (loss) to be misstated by $192,547, $91,720, $107,058 and
$122,566 for 2005 and the first, second and third quarters of 2006, respectively, within the final expense product line included
in the Broker Life segment. The previously issued financial statements have been restated herein to reflect the correction of this
erTorT.

The Company’s retained earnings as of January 1, 2006 as previously reported was reduced by $192,547 to correct this error
for 2005. The restated amounts within the Company's balance sheet at December 31, 2005 and statement of operations for the
year then ended are as follows:

As Previously Increase
Reported {Decrease)  As Restated

Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005

Reinsurance Recoverable $ 2,749655 $ (55,936) $2,693,719
Accrued Expenses and other Liabilities 1,999,327 136,611 2,135,938
Retained Earnings 7,962,312 (192,547) 7,769,765
Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2005

Premiums ceded $ 874039 § 107572 $ 931,611
Policyholder benefits ceded 1,104,013 (29,039) 1,074,974
Increase {(decrease) in net benefit reserves 351,576 55,936 407,512
Income before income tax expense and net income 324 312 (192,547) 131,765
Net income per common share, basic and diluted 0.19 .11 0.08

See Note 10 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA in the NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for
the originally reported amounts, the related changes and the restated amounts for each of the quarters in 2006 and 2005.
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Note 3-INVESTMENTS

The cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities and equity securities are shown below.

The cost amounts are

adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount on fixed maturities and for write-downs of securities whose
decline in value has been judged to be other-than-temporary. The table shows the Company's investments’ gross unrealized
losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

i
Gross Unrealized Losses

2006
Gross

Unrealized Less Than 12 Greater Than
Available-for-sale securities: Amortized Cost Gains Months 12 Months Fair Value
US Govemment Obligations $ 14637198 § 28925 % 3598 § 212559 % 14,449,966
State and Political Subdivisions 1,999,992 8 - 22,183 1,977817
Corporate Bonds 85,420,020 679,497 534,188 1,641,428 83,923,901
Montgage-Backed Securities 701,321 14,018 - 5,257 710,082
Total Fixed Manurity Securities 102,758,531 722,448 537,786 ' 1,881,427 101,061,766
Equity Securities 8,840,149 741,634 137,206 15,312 9,429,265
Total $ 111,598,680 § 1464082 § 674,992 % 1,896,739 $ 110491001
2005 Gross Unrealized Losses

Unrealized Less Than 12 Greater Than
Available-for-sale securities: Amortized Cost CGaing Months 12 Months Fair Value
US Government Obligations $ 14342151 § 77845 $ 122,526 $ 19236 $ 14,278,234
State and Political Subdivisions 2,092,176 140,012 - - 2,232,188
Corporate Bonds 92,786,118 1,959,969 1,058,140 156,584 93,531,363
Montgage-Backed Securities 2,867,513 29,198 13,724 - 2,882,987
Total Fixed Maturity Securities 112,087,958 2,207,024 1,194,390 175,820 112,924,772
Equity Securities 8,292,389 911,661 564,015 60,000 8,580,035
Total $ 120380347 § 3118685 $ 1,758,405 $ 235820 $ 121,504,807

The following table summarizes, for all securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2006, the estimated fair value,
pre-tax gross unrealized loss and number of securities by length of time those securities have been continuously in an

unrealized loss position:

Estimated fair value Gross unrealized loss Number of securities
Fixed Maturities:
Less than 12 months 16,449,976 b} 537,786 23
Greater than 12 months 55,014,563 1,881,427 B6
Total fixed maturities 71,464,539 2,419,213 109
Equities:
Less than 12 months 2,312,343 137,206 8
Greater than 12 months 266,562 15312 1
Total equities 2,578,905 152,518 9
Total 74,043,444 $ 2,571,731 118

When a security is placed on the watch list, it is monitored for further market value changes and additional news related to the
issuer’s financial condition. The focus is on objective evidence that may influence the evaluation of impairment factors.
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The decision to impair a security incorporates both quantitative criteria and qualitative information. The Company considers a
number of factors including, but not limited to: (a) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than
book value, (b) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, (c) the intent and ability of the Company to retain
its investment for a period of time sufficient to fully recover to cost, (d¢) whether the debtor is current on interest and principal
payments and (e) general market conditions and industry or sector specific factors.

The Company's decision to impair a security is primarily based on whether the security’s fair value is likely to remain
significantly below its book value in light of all of the factors considered. For securities that are impaired, the security is
adjusted. to fair value and the resulting losses are recognized in realized gains (losses) in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Investments that are impaired at December 31, 2006 for which an other-than-temporary impairment has not been recognized
consist mainly of corporate bond issues. The impairment of these securities has been deemed as temporary (attributable to
increased interest rates in the bond market} due to the assigned rating, the typical fluctuations of these particular securities in
the marketplace and management’s intent and the Company’s ability to hold them until they have substantially recovered the
unrealized losses. The aggregated unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 are approximately 2.3% of the aggregated amortized
cost of all securities. There are a total of 118 securities held that are considered temporarily impaired, 89 of which have been
impaired for twelve months or longer. Of the 109 fixed maturitics deemed 10 be temporarily impaired, three are rated by
Standard and Poor’s as BB+ to BB- (i.e. non-investment grade), while all the others are investment grade bonds. The Company
considered one equity investment as other-than-temporarily impaired and wrote the cost down by $70,000 at December 31,
2006 (in addition to previous write downs of other equities during the year totaling $617,000)

The fair values for investments in fixed maturities and equity securities are based on quoted market prices, where available.
For investments in fixed maturities and equity securities not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained
from independent pricing services.

The annual change in net unrealized investment appreciation or depreciation, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, and the amount of net realized investment gains or losses included in net income (loss) for the respective years then
ended are shown below.

Year Ended Decerrber 31 2006 2005 2004
Fixed maturities:
Change in net unrealized appreciation/depreciation $ (2,533,579 $ (2.772,067) $ (262,986)
Net realized gains $ 433,660 $ 107400 % 633,275
Equity sccurities:
Change in net unrealized appreciation/depreciation $ 301470 § (1,364,263) $ (1,623,273)
Net realized gains (losses) $ (429,619) §$ 672,865 § 2,234,975

The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities at December 31, 2006, by contractual maturity, are shown
below. Expected maturities for investments in fixed maturities will differ from contractual maturities because bommowers may
have the right to call or prepay obligations, sometimes without prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2006 Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 0,748,173 § 9,575,244
Due after one year through five years 13,100,042 12,962,579
Due after five years through ten years 57,474,567 56,563,673
Due after ten years 21,734,028 21,250,188
Subtotal 102,057,210 100,351,634
Mortgage-backed securitics with multiple maturity dates 701,321 710,082
Total $ 102,758,531 $ 101,061,766

Proceeds during 2006, 2005 and 2004 from sales and maturities of investments in available-for-sale securities were
$32,753,908, $35,838,301 and $54,774,500, respectively. Gross gains of $594,167, $608,542 and $1,286,065 and gross losses
of $160,502, $501,142 and $652,790 were realized on the sales of available-for-sale fixed maturities during 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively. Included in gross realized losses during 2004 are net adjustments to the carrying amounts of available-for-
sale fixed maturities of $333,676 relating to declines in value which were considered by management to be other than
temporary (none in 2006 or 2005). Net rcalized gains from the sales of fixed maturities have been reduced by $9,128, $1,152
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and $17,641 in 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively, due to related changes in amortization pattierns of deferred policy acquisition
costs. In addition, net realized gains from the sales of fixed maturities have been reduced by $10,087 in 2004 for incentive fees
earned by the portfolio manager (none in 2006 or 2005).

Gross gains of $992,591, $1,301,523 and $3,519,715 and gross losses of $1,490,596, $628,658 and $1,281,739 were realized
on the sales of available-for-sale equity securities during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included in gross realized losses
during 2006 and 2004 are adjustments to the carrying amounts of available-for-sale equity securities of $687,987 and
$473,421, respectively, relating to declines in value that were considered by management to be other than temporary (none in
2005). Net realized gains from the sale of equity securities have been reduced by $9,056, $7,216 and $62,260 in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, due 1o changes in amortization patterns of deferred policy acquisition costs. In addition, net realized
gains from the sale of available-for-sale equity securities have been reduced by $35.599 in 2004 for incentive and management
fees earned by the portfolio manager {(none in 2006 or 2005).

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of available-for-sale securities is summarized as follows:

December 31 2006 , 2005
Net appreciation (depreciation) on available-for-sale securities:

Fixed maturities $ {1,696,765) $ 836,814
Equity sccurities 589.116 287,646
Adjustment of deferred policy acquisition costs 51,625 . (32,509)
Deferred income taxes - ! (371,261)
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) 3 (1,056,024) § 720,690

Investment management services were provided through January 31, 2004 by a firm affiliated with certain board members and
shareholders of the Company - see Note 15 - Related Party Transactions. .

Major categories of net investment income are summarized as follows: '

Year Ended December 31 2006 ©2005 2004
Fixed maturities 3 5665213 § 6,002,557 % 5,604,791
Equity securitics 264,548 337,494 337,808
Investment real estate 362,811 " 365,808 315,208
Poalicy loans 284,972 287,236 278,503
Short-term investiments and other 389,326 164,013 72,204
Subtotal 6,966,870 7,157,198 6,608,514
Investment expense (291,650 (251,251) (259,063)

Net investment income b} 6,675,220 § 6,905,947 3§ 6,349,451

The decrease in investment income for fixed maturities and increase for short-term investments results from the disposals and
sales of high yielding bonds and carrying a larger than usual cash balance with increased short-term yields.

The Company limits credit risk by diversifying its investment portfolio among government and corporate fixed maturities and
common and preferred equity securities. It further diversifies these investment portfolios within industry sectors. As a result,
management believes that significant concentrations of credit risk do not exist. The only investment (other than U.S.
Governments) comprising more than ten percent of shareholders’ equity at December 31; 2006 is Boston Properties Limited
Partnership ($1,561,087). At December 31, 2006, the Company had no investments that had not been income producing for a
period of at least twelve months prior to year-end and had no fixed maturity securities on non-accrual status at December 31,
2006.




The following table is a reconciliation of the net unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year and the changes in net
unrealized gains (losses) as reported on the accompanying statements of shareholders’ equity.

Pretax Tax Net-of-Tax
Year Ended Amount Amount
December 3], 2006
Unrealized loss $ (2,155,603) $ (369,870) $ (1,774,047
Less: Reclassification adjustment
for gains realized in net income 4,041 1,374 2,667
Change in net unrealized loss $ (2,159,644) $ (371,244) $ (1,776,714)
December 31, 2005
Unrealized loss LY (3,222939) $ (1,005,802) $ (2,127,137
Less: Reclassification adjustment
for gains realized in net income 780,265 265,290 514,975
Change in net unrealized loss $ (4,003,204) $ (1,361,092) $ (2,642,112)

As an income generation strategy, the Company takes certain option positions, generally on equity securities or related market
indices and on equity options embedded in convertible bonds. Although such positions may be covered by actual securities
owned or offsetting options, hedge accounting is not used. Accordingly, all such positions are marked to market and changes
in value reported as realized gains or losses. During 2006 and 2005, option purchases totaled approximately $52,000 and
$9,000, respectively, consideration received for options written totaled approximately $638,000 and $290,000 in 2006 and
2005, respectively, and retated net realized gains totaled approximately $193,000 and $56,000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
At December 31, 2006, net short option positions outstanding had a market value of $(102,000) (included in Other liabilities in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets) including equity options embedded in convertible bonds. At December 31, 2005, net short
option positions outstanding had a market value of $(179,000).

Pursuant to requirements of certain state insurance departments, the Company has investments with a carrying amount of
$49,264,219 at December 31, 2006, placed on deposit at various financial institutions that are restricted from withdrawal
without prior regulatory approval.

The Company owns the building and land, which it currently occupies. At both December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company
occupied approximately 32% of the building with the remaining space leased or available for lease to third-party tenants. The
accompanying financial statements reflect the proportionate Company occupied share of the building and related operating
expense as property and equipment and general expense, respectively. The remaining portions are reflected as investment real
estate and as a reduction of investment income, respectively. Accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2006 and 2005 on the
investment real estate portion of the building was $1,556,909 and $1,484,482, respectively.

The Company leases office space to third-party tenants under non-cancelable lecase agreements. Future minimum rental
income (based on leases currently effective) is $610,000, $595,000, $563,000, $434,000 and $156,000 for years 2007 through
2011, respectively.
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Note 4-VALUE OF INSURANCE ACQUIRED .

t

The value of insurance acquired is an asset, which represents the present value of future profits on business acquired, using
discount rates of 6.6% to 9.0%. Balances outstanding relate primarily to the purchase of United Liberty, two additional
companies which have been merged into Citizens Security (Integrity National Life Insurance Company and Old South Life
Insurance Company) and the National Affiliated Investors Life block of business. An analysis of the value of insurance
acquired for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 ? 2004
Balance at beginning of year $ 2284174 § 2,689,902 $ 3,119,609
Accretion of interest 129,019 151,212 178,070
Amortization (476,677 (556,940 607,777)
Balance at end of year $ 1,936,516 $ 2284174 § 2,689,902

Amortization of the value of insurance acquired (net of interest accretion) in each of the following five years will be
approximately: 2007 - $287,000; 2008 - $243,000; 2009 - $206,000; 2010 - $175,000 and 2011 - $149,000 . )

Note 5-DEBT

Debt consists of the following:

December 31 2006 2005

Commercial bank, due 2007 $ 208337 § 1,375,003
Related party, due 2007 5,330,000 4,000,000

Total $ 5,538,337 § 5,375,003

The Company's outstanding commercial bank borrowings relate primarily to various insurance company acquisitions. Interest
is payable quarterly at the lower of the bank’s prime lending rate or the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.75% (7.85% at
December 31, 2006). Scheduled principal installments are due as follows: April 2007 and, July 2007 - $104,169 each. The
loan agreement for the bank note contains covenants regarding asset acquisitions, shareh¢lders’ equity and dividends, and
maintenance of a debt to earnings ratio. During the first half of 2005 the Company did not comply with a loan covenant (debt
to earnings ratio) and did not comply with another covenant (borrower’s equity)} at June 30, 2006 on this debt and received a
waiver from the lender of each violation through June 30, 2006. In return for the waivers, the Company’s Chairman agreed to
personally guarantee the outstanding bank debt. The Company was in compliance with the debt covenants for the last two
quarters of 2006. Regarding the currently scheduled debt repayments, the Company believes its available resources will be
adequate to service 2007 debt obligations. In addition, the Company’s Chatrman has expressed potential willingness to loan
the Company an additional $200,000, if necessary, which management believes will service debt obligations through 2007.
The Company has pledged the issued and outstanding common and preferred stock of Citizens Security as collateral for the
commercial bank note. '

The Company borrowed $2,000,000 from its Chairman in December 2002 to strengthen the statutory capital position of its
principal insurance subsidiary. The Company borrowed an additional $1,000,000, $1,000,000 and $1,330,000 in 2003, 2005
and 2006, respectively from its Chairman for general operating capital, including bank debt service. These borrowings are
considered current debt as a result of a 90-day call provision in the loan agreement. Interest on the debt is payable quarterly by
the Company at an annual rate equal to the greater of 6.00% or the prime lending rate plus 1% (9.25% at December 31, 2006).
The outstanding principal is callable upon 90 days notice or otherwise due on June 30, 2007, except however, under terms of a
subordination agreement between the Chairman and the Company’s commercial bank, repayment is prohibited until all
outstanding commercial bank borrowings are repaid.

Cash paid for interest on debt was $486,646, $379,519, and $354,201, during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 6-NET INCOME (LOSS) AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of net income per share. There were no outstanding dilutative instruments in
any year. No dividends were paid or accrued for 2006, 2005, or 2004.

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Numerator: Net Income (loss) 3 (835,904) $ 131,765 §% 255,613
Denominator: Weiglned average common shares 1,652,605 1,671,628 1,680,227
Net Income (Loss) Per Share, basic and diluted: 3 (0.51) § 008 $ 0.15
Note 7-INCOME TAXES
Income taxes consist of the following:
Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Current tax expense (benefit) $ (21,000) $ (88,000) $ 245,000
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 374,000 88,000 (294,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 353,000 $ - $ {49,000)

Deferred income taxes are provided for cumulative temporary differences between balances of assets and liabilities determined
under GAAP and balances determined for tax reporting purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated)
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Value of insurance acquired $ (658,000) $ (777,000)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (2,610,000) (2,357,000)
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securitics - (371,000)
Other (382,000) (271,000)
Total deferred tax lizbilities {3.650,000) (3,776,000)
Deferred Tax Assets:
Policy and contract reserves 3,584,000 3,655,000
Fixed maturities and equity securities 266,000 207,000
Real estate 549,000 549,000
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards 290,000 265,000
Net operating and capital loss carryforwards 727,000 432,000
Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities 182,000 -
Other 295,000 418,000
Total deferred tax assets 5,893,000 5,526,000
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (1,963,000) (1,467,000)
Net deferred tax assets after valuation allowance 3,930,000 4,059,000
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ 280,000 $ 283,000

The Company has generally not been currently taxable, accumulating operating and capital loss carryovers for tax purposes
that create uncertainties as to future realization of related tax benefits and ultimate effective rates. This significantly impacts the
Company’s determination of its deferred income tax accounts, and requires periodic “true-ups™ ($84,000 in 2005).
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The following is a reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate, to the tax at the Company’s
effective income tax rate:

2005 ‘

Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) ) 2004
Tax at the statutory rate $ (164,000) % 45000 § 70,000
Small life company deduction - (17,000) . -
State and local income tax (22,000) (48,000) (68,000)
Change in valuation allowance 490,000 (59,000} 53,000
True-up 94,000 84,000 -
Other (35,000) 9,000 (99,000)
Dividend exclusion (10,000) (14,000) : (5,000)
Tax at the effective rate $ 353,000 % - $ (49,000)

Income taxes of $33,957 were refunded in 2006. Income taxes refunded in 2005 were $172,691 and income taxes (paid) in
2004 were ($34,437). The Company has $1,127,000 of net operating loss carryforwards, which begin to expire in the year
2018. The change in the valuation allowance is due principally to the limitation in the expected utilization of loss
carryforwards.

Under the tax law in effect prior to 1984, a portion of income of Citizens Security was not taxed when earned. It was
accumulated in a tax account known as policyholders’ surplus. Under the provisions of the Deficit Reduction Act of 1984,
policyholders’ surplus accounts were frozen at their December 31, 1983 balance of $859,000 for Citizens Security on a merged
basis. Distributions from the policyholders’ surplus would be subject to income tax. The relevant tax law was amended by
Section 705 of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 {(Public Law 108-357-Oct. 22, 2004). Section 705 amended IRC
Section 815 by providing that distributions from the policyholders surplus account made during any taxable year of a stock life
insurance company beginning after December 31, 2004, and before January 1, 2007 will not be added to the insurance
company’s taxable income, and that any distribution to shareholders during such years would be treated first as a distribution
out of policyholders surplus. Therefore, Citizens Security paid a cash dividend to the Company for the full balance of the
policyholders’ surplus account of $859,000 on December 27, 2006.

Note 8-STATUTORY ACCOUNTING PRACTICES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Insurance Subsidiaries are domiciled in Kentucky and prepare their statutory-basis financial statements in accordance with
statutory accounting practices (“SAP”) prescribed or permitted by the Kentucky Office of Insurance (“KOI"). “Prescribed”
statutory accounting practices include state insurance laws, regulations, and general administrative rules, as well as a variety of
publications of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”). “Permitted” statutory accounting practices
encompass all accounting practices that are not prescribed; such practices may differ from state to state, may differ from
company to company within a state, and may change in the future.

Statutory-basis net income (loss) and capital and surplus for the Company’s combined insurance operations, for the three years
ended December 31, 2006 are shown below. These amounts are combined totals for Citizens Security, United Liberty, and
Citizens Insurance, with adjustments to eliminate intercompany holdings and activity.

Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Net Income (Loss) $ 184634 3 1,203,045 § (172,701)
Capital and Surplus $ 11296774 % 11,560,743 % 10,755,568

Principal differences between SAP and GAAP include: a) costs of acquiring new policies are generally deferred and amortized
for GAAP; b) value of insurance in force acquired is established as an asset for GAAP; c) benefit reserves are calculated using
more realistic investment, mortality and withdrawal assumptions for GAAP; d) the change in SAP deferred income taxes
associated with timing differences is recorded directly to equity rather than as a component of net income as required for
GAAP; ¢) assets and liabilities of acquired companies are adjusted to their fair values at acquisition with the excess purchase
price over such fair values recorded as goodwill under GAAP; f) available-for-sale fixed matirity investments are reported at
fair value with unrealized gain and losses reported as a separate component of sharcholders’ equity for GAAP; and g) statutory

asset valuation reserves and interest maintenance reserves are not required for GAAP.
I
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Statutory restrictions limit the amount of dividends which the insurance companies may pay. Generally, dividends during any
year may not be paid, without prior regulatory approval, in excess of the lesser of (a) 10% of statutory shareholders’ surplus as
of the preceding December 31, or (b) statutory net operating income for the preceding year. During 2006, Citizens Security
made a capital infusion to Citizens Insurance of $50,000. United Liberty paid dividends to Citizens Security of $99,900,
during 2006, (none in 2005 and 2004) and Citizens Insurance paid dividends to Citizens Security of $250,000 and $1,174,090
in 2005 and 2004, respectively (none in 2006). The Insurance Subsidiaries must each maintain $1,250,000 of capital and
surplus, the minimum required for insurance companies domiciled in Kentucky. The KOI imposes minimum risk-based capital
(“RBC") requirements on insurance enterprises that were developed by the NAIC. The formulas for determining the amount of
RBC specify various weighting factors that are applied to financial balances and various levels of activity based on the
perceived degree of risk. Regulatory compliance is determined by a ratio (the “Ratio™) of the enterprise’s regulatory total
adjusted capital, as defined by the NAIC, to its required authorized control level RBC, as defined by the NAIC. Enterprises
below specific trigger points or ratios are classified within certain levels, each of which requires specified corrective action.
Based on RBC computations as of December 31, 2006, the Insurance Subsidiaries each have statutory capital in excess of
minimum regulatory requirements.

Note 9--SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s operations are managed along five business segments representing its principal insurance product lines: Home
Service Life, Broker Life, Preneed Life, Dental, and Other Health, Products in all five lines are sold through independent
agency operations. Home Service Life consists primarily of traditional life insurance coverage sold in amounts of $10,000 and
less to middle and lower income individuals. This distribution channel is characterized by a significant amount of agent
comtact with customers throughout the year. Broker Life product sales consist primarily of simplified issue and graded-benefit
policies in amounts of $10,000 and less, as well as our new final expense product in amounts of $10,000 to $35,000. Other
products, which are not aggressively marketed, in this segment include: group life, universal life, annuities and participating
life policies. Preneed Life products are sold to individuals in connection with prearrangement of their funeral and include
single premium and multi-pay policies with benefits generally in amounts of $10,000 and less. These policies are generally
sold to middle aged to elderly individuals. Dental products are term policies generally sold to small and intermediate size
employer groups. Other Health products include various accident and health policies sold to individuals and employer groups.

Segment information as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and for the years then ended 1s as follows:

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Revenue:
Home Service Life s 8,840,283 § 9,009,607 % 8,873,473
Broker Life - 5929126 6,348,960 5,731,569
Preneed Life 5,156,860 7,501,933 9,422,793
Dental 8,433,802 8,820,190 9,358,935
QOther Health 911,392 961,952 1,103,521
Segment Totals 29,271,463 32,642,642 34,490,291
Net realized investment gains 4,041 780,265 2,868,250
Total Revenue $ 29,275,504 $ 33,422,907 § 37,358,541
Below are the net investment income amounts that are included in the revenue totals above.
Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Net Investment Income:
Home Service Life $ 2,056,568 $ 1912548 § 1,649,798
Broker Life 2,138,296 2,435,012 2,165,421
Preneed Life 2,377,294 2,435,051 2,421,733
Dental 30,884 40,968 35,009
Other Health 72,178 81,968 73,430
ch@nt Totals $ 6,675220 § 6905947 % 6,349,451
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The Company evaluates performance based on several factors, of which the primary financial measure is segment profit.
Segment profit represents pretax earnings, determined in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1, except
net realized investment gains and interest expense are excluded. A significant portion of the Company's realized investment
gains and losses are generated from investments in equity securities.

2005
Year Ended December 31 : 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Segment Profit (1.oss);
Home Service Life $ (176,484) $ (12,783 § (616,755)
Broker Life (110,698) (221,847 (961,413)
Preneed Life 376,774 464,393 (275,350)
Dental (58,985) (193,140) (150,335)
Other Health (29,975) (305,604) (303,463)
Segment Totals 632 (268,981) (2,307,316)
Net realized investment gains 4,041 780,265 2,868,250
Less Interest expense 486,645 379,519 354,200
Income (loss) before income taxes $ (481,972) § 131,765 $ 206,734

Depreciation and amortization amounts below consist of amortization of the value of insurance acquired and deferred policy
acquisition costs, along with depreciation expense.

Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004

Depreciation and Amortization:

Home Service Life $ 563307 $ 674534 $ 701,531
Broker Life 619,021 433,686 365,988
Prenced Life 428,939 589,333 824,291
Dental 126,473 70,122 45431
Other Health 29,000 28,695 55,706
Segment Totals $ 1,766,740 $ 1,796370 § 1,992,947

Segment asset totals are determined based on policy liabilities outstanding in each segment.

2005
Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Assets:
Home Service Life $ 42233804 § 41,620,007 § 41,465,725
Broker Life 49,098,467 51,305,778 54,414,225
Preneed Life 54,193,219 57,603,193 58,560,125
Dental 250,030 913,764 1,025,005
Other Health 1,504,029 1,782,055 1,805,479
Total Assets $ 147,279,549 §$ 153,224,797 $ 157,270,559

t
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Note 10--QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

While preparing the 2006 consolidated financial statements, the Company discovered an error in the compilation and reporting
of certzin reinsurance transactions that caused the Net Income (Loss) to be misstated for the first, second and third quarters of
2006, respectively. The previously issued quarterly financial statements have been restated below to reflect the correction of
this error. Below is also selected consolidated quarterly financial data for the year ended December 31, 2005 with the originally
reported amounts, the related changes and the restated amounts for the second, third and fourth quarters of 2005:

Year 2006 - Quarter (As Restated) 1 2 3 4
Segment Revenue § $ 7539517 $ 7473323 % 7,181.451 § 7,077,172
Investment gains, net 445,613 (103,348) (453,400) 115,176
Total Revenue 7,985,130 7,369,975 6,728,051 7,192,348
Segment Profit (Loss) (14,334) (155,346) 350,187 (179,374)
Investment gains, net 445,613 (103,348) (453,400) 115,176
Interest expense 110,421 119,143 128,496 128,585
Income tax expense (benefit) 93,123 269,053 (26,954) 18,710
Net Income (Loss) 2277135 $  (646,89)]) (204,755) $  (211,993)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $0.14 $(0.39) $(0.13) $(0.13)

Correction 1 2 3
Segment Revenue (55,692) % (38,200) (47,443)

Investment gains, net - - -
Total Revenue (55,692) (38,200) (47,443)
Segment Profit (Loss) (91,720) (107,058) (122,566)
Investment gains, net - - -
Interest expense - - -
Income tax expense (benefit) - - -
Net Income (Loss) (91,720) $  (107,058) (122,566)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $(0.05) $(0.07) $(0.09)

As Previously Reported 1 2 3
Segment Revenue 7,595,209 $ 7,511,523 $ 7,228,894
Investment gains, net 445,613 (103,348) {453,400)

Total Revenue 8,040,822 7,408,175 6,775,494
Segment Profit (Loss) 77,386 (48,288) 472,753
Investment gains, net 445,613 (103,348) (453,400)
Interest expense 110,421 119,143 128,496
Income tax expense (benefit) 93,123 269,053 (26,954)
Net Income (Loss) 319455 $  (539,832) (82,189)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $0.19 $(0.32) $(0.04)
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Year 2005 - Quarter (As Restated) 1 2 3 4

Segment Revenue $ 8266901 $ 8539722 % ’ 8,111,878 § 7,724,141
Investment gains, net 55,320 326,783 348,390 49772
Total Revenue 8,322,221 8,866,505 . 8,460,268 7,773,913
Segment Profit (Loss) 90,265 (416,076) ©(79,903) 136,733
Investment gains, net 55,320 326,783 348,390 49,772
Interest expense 86,113 99,091 < 90,163 104,152
Income tax expense (benefit) (51,531) (46,981 98,512 -
Net Income (Loss) $ 111,003 § (141,403), $ 79812 $ 82,353
4
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $0.07 $(0.08) ) $0.05 $0.05
Correction 1 2 3 4
Segment Revenue $ - $ (22,258) $ (39,002) § (46,312)
Investment gains, net - - ' - -
Total Revenue - (22,258) © o (39,002) {46,312)
Segment Profit (Loss) . - (44,065) v (63,039) (85,443)
Investment gains, net - - - -
Interest expense - - - -
Income tax expense (benefit) - - ‘ - -
Net Income (Loss) $ - $ (44,065) § (63,039 % (85,443)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $0.00 $(0.02) $(0.03) $(0.05)
As Previously Reported 1 2 3 4
Segment Revenue $ 8266901 $ 8561980 $ | 8,150,880 $ 7,770,453
Investment gains, net 55,320 326,783 | 348,390 49,772
Total Revenue 8,322,221 8,388,763 ' 8,499,270 7,820,225
Segment Profit (Loss) 90,265 372,011y + (16,864) 222,176
Investment gains, net 55,320 326,783 348,390 49,772
Interest expense 86,113 99,091 : 90,163 104,152
Income tax expense (benefit) (51,531) {46,981) 98,512 -
Net Income (Loss) T % 111,003 § (97,338) % 142,851 §$ 167,796
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $0.07 $(0.06) $0.08 $0.10

Included in the corrections noted above, net policyholder benefits and increase in net benefits increased by $84,975, $36,028,
$68,858 and $75,123 for 2005 and the first, second and third quarters of 2006, respectively.

Upon review for impaired securities, the Company recognized as realized losses (included in Investment gains (losses), net)

$218,133, $256,714, $141,999 and $70,271 in the 1%, 2%, 3™ and 4™ quarters, respectively during 2006. There were no such
realized losses from impairments recognized in 2005. ‘
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Note 11--REINSURANCE

The Company currently follows the general practice of reinsuring that portion of risk on the life of any individual that is in
excess of $40,000 for individual policies (under yearly renewable term and coinsurance agreements) and $20,000 for group
policies (under a group yearly renewable term agreement). Graded death benefit and simplified issue coverages above $4,000
are generally 50% reinsured, with the Life Insurance Subsidiaries maintaining a maximum $10,000 risk on any one
policyholder. Individual and group accidental death coverage and a minor portion of cancer coverage are 100% reinsured. To
the extent that reinsuring companies are unable to meet obligations under reinsurance agreements, the Company weould remain
liable. Reinsurance premiums, expenses, recoveries and reserves related to reinsured business are accounted for on bases
consistent with those used in accounting for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts.

Note 12—CONTINGENCIES

United Liberty, which the Company acquired in 1998, defended an action in an Ohio state court brought by two policyholders
in 2000. The Complaint referred to a class of life insurance policies, including related certificates of participation, that United
Liberty issued over a period of years ended around 1971 (known as “Five Star Policies™). It alleged that United Liberty's
dividend payments on these policies from 1993 through 1999 were less than the amounts required by the certificates of
participation. It did not specify the amount of the alleged underpayment but implied a maximum of about $850,000. The
plaintiffs also alleged that United Liberty was liable to pay punitive damages, also in an unspecified amount, for breach of an
implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing to the plaintiffs in relation to the dividends. The action was certified as a class
action on behalf of all policyholders who were Ohio residents and whose policies were still in force in 1993. United Liberty
denied the material allegations of the Complaint and defended the action vigorously.

As a result of a provisional settlement agreement dated October 8, 2004, that applied to all holders of the Five Star Policies
wherever they reside, United Liberty recognized as of December 31, 2004 an obligation for future payments to the
policyholders and their attorneys totaling $825.000. The terms of the settlement agreement were subject to the approvat of the
court in which the action was pending. On October 21, 2005, a Final Order and Judgment was entered by the Court. The Final
Order and Judgment approved the provisional Settlement Agreement dated October 8, 2004, and became final and effective on
November 20, 2005.

The $825,000 obligation for future payments included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2005 and
2004 consists of [i] up to $500,000 payable to all persons wha owned Five Star Policies that were still in force in 1993, [ii]
$315,000 in attorneys' fees payable to counsel for the class and [iii] a $10,000 incentive award payable to the lead plaintiffs for
the class. The $500,000 portion is payable in respect of dividend obligations on the Five Star Policies from 1993 through 2000
and is to be paid in a lump sum to those policy holders whose policies are no longer in force and in three annual installments to
those policy holders whose policies are still in force at their anniversary date. United liberty made the first payments dated
January 12, 2006 to those whose policies were no longer in force, which totaled $278,698. The attorneys’ fees and incentive
award were also paid on that date (prior to the “Initial Payment Date” set as sixty days subsequent to the end of the appeal
period). Additional payments were made throughout 2006, leaving a balance of the related obligation for future payments at
December 31, 2006 of $166,600.

In addition, the Company is party to other lawsuits in the normal course of business. Based on information currently available,
management believes that currently pending lawsuits will be resolved without material financial impact to the Company.

Note 13--FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair values of financial instruments, and the methods used in estimating these values, are as follows:

Fixed Maturities: The fair values for investments in fixed maturities are based on quoted market prices, where available. For
those fixed maturities that are not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from independent pricing
services. Available-for-sale fixed maturities are carried at fair value in the accompanying statements of financial condition. At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the fair value of available-for-sale fixed maturities was $101,061,766 and $112,924,772,
respectively.
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Equity Securities: The fair values for investments in equity securities are based on quoted market prices. Equity securities are
catried at fair value in the accompanying statements of financial condition. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the fair value of
equity securities was $9,429,265 and $8,580,035, respectively.

Short-Term Investments: The carrying amount of short-term investments approximates their fair value. At both December 31,
2006 and 2005 the fair value of short-term investments was $40,000.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. At December 31,
2006 and 2005, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents was $7,966,604 and $3,552,969, respectively.

Policy Loans: The carrying amount of policy loans approximates their fair value. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the fair
value of policy loans was $4,452,885 and $4,495,291, respectively.

Investment Contracts: The carrying amount of investment-type fixed annuity contracts approximates their fair value. At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the fair value of investment-type fixed annuity contracts was $8,821,042 and $9,254,397,

respectively.

Notes Payable: The carrying amounts of notes payable approximate their fair values. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the fair
value of notes payable was $5,538,337 and $5,375,003, respectively.

Note 14--BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan for its full-time employees. The Company contributes matching contributions at the
discretion of its Board of Directors. Company expense associated with this plan totaled $57 642, $52,345, and $57,401 in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 15--RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has various transactions with its President and Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) or entities he controls.
Through January 31, 2004 the Chairman provided investment portfolic management for the Company and its subsidiaries
through SMC Advisors, Inc. (of which the Chairman is the principal officer, a director, and the sole shareholder). The
investment portfolio management contracts provided for total annual fixed fees of $45,000 and incentive compensation equal
to five percent (5%) of the sum of the net realized and unrealized capital gains in the fixed maturities and equity securities
portiolios of the Company during each contract year. Any excess of net realized and unrealizéd capital losses over net realized
and unrealized capital gains at the end of a contract year were not carried forward to the next contract year. Fixed fees totaled
$3,750 in 2004. Incentive fees of $47,668 were incurred and paid for 2004. The investment management contracts were
terminated as of January 31, 2004 when the Chairman was named Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of each of the
Insurance Subsidiaries. The Company also maintains a portion of its investments under a Trust Agreement with a bank
controlled by the Chairman. Fees to the bank are based on assets held. Such fees were $35,609, $44,664, and $52,772 in 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively. The Company also manages certain commercial real estate affiliated with its Chairman. The
Company charges the real estate projects management and leasing fees at market rates, whichi totaled $158,372, $146,903, and
$143,101 during 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The Company borrowed $1,330,000 and 1,000,000 from its Chairman in
2006 and 2005, respectively, in addition to previous borrowings totaling $3,000,000. Terms of the note require interest to be
paid quarterly at the greater of 6% per year or the commercial bank prime lending rate plus 1% (9.25% at December 31, 2006).

Note 16 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2005, the Accounting Standards Executive Comrnittee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AcSEC) issued Statement of Position 05-1 (SOP 05-1), "Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for Deferred Acquisition Costs
in Connection with Modifications or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts.” SOP 05-1 provides guidance on accounting by
insurance enterprises for deferred acquisition costs on internal replacements of insurance contracts other than those specifically
described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 97, "Accounting and Reporting by Insurance
Enterprises for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments.” SOP 05-1
defines an internal replacement as a modification in product benefits, features, rights, or coverages that occurs by exchange of a
contract for a new contract, or by amendment, endorsement, or rider to a contract, or by the election of a feature or coverage
within a contract. SOP 05-1 is effective for internal replacements occurring in fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2006
and is required to be adopted by the Company on January 1, 2007. Retrospective application of SOP 05-1 to previously issued
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consolidated financial statements is not permitted. Based upon management’s review of the Company's historical and expected
transactions, the impact on the Company’s financial statements of implementing this standard is not expected to be material.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), "Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109." FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, "Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Specifically, FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and aiso provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and is required to be adopted by the Company on
January 1, 2007. Management is continuing to evaluate the impact of adopting this interpretation and anticipates that it will not
have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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Schedule IT - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Citizens Financial Corporation

{Parent Company Only)
Condensed Balance Sheets
. 2005

Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated)
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (book overdraft) $ (149,324) § 157,870

Equity securities available-for-sale (cost of $228,000 and

$447,095 in 2006 and 2005 respectively) 313,191 500,110

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale (amortized cost of i

$23,345 in 2006 and $23,345 in 2005 128,530 129,514

Investments in subsidiaries* 19,183,884 21,427,019

Furniture and equipment 347,065 183.809

Intercompany receivable®* 556,385 862,738

Other assets 89,922 43,106
Total Assets $ 20,465,653 $ 23,304,166
Liabilities:

Note payable to bank $ 208,337 % 1,375,003

Note payable to reiated party 5,330,000 4,000,000

Current and defesred income taxes 312,837 234,584

Other liabilities 502,434 450,575
Total Liabilities 6,353,608 6,060,162
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock 1,588,011 1,671,628

Additional paid-in capital 6,650,197 7,081,921

Accumulated other comprehensive income 190,375 105,061

Equity in accumulated other comprehensive ‘

income (loss) of subsidiaries* (1,246,399) 615,629

Retained eamings 6,933,861 7,769,765
Total Shareholders’ Equity 14,116,045 17,244,004
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 20469653 $ 23,304,166

* Eliminated in consolidation.

These condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying footnotes of Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries.
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Schedule I ~ Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Citizens Financial Corporation
(Parent Company Only)
Condensed Statements of Operations

2005

Year Ended December 31 2006 (As Restated) 2004
Revenues:

Net realized investment gains (losses) $ (7,909 $ 23,064 $ 416,364

Service fees from subsidiaries 5,784,789 5,033,966 5,459,902

Interest and dividend income 875,775 13,707 5,566

Other income 11,040 6,575 16,553
Total Revenues 6,663,694 5,077,312 5,898,885
Expenses:

Administrative and general expenses 5,671,128 5,240,793 5,739,167

Interest expense 486,645 379,519 354,200
Total Expenses 6,157,773 5,620,312 6,093,367
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) and

equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 505,922 (543,000) (194,482)
Income tax expense (benefit) 100,721 - (60,000)
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed

eamings of subsidiarics 405,201 (543,000) (134,482)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (1,241,105) 674,765 390,095
Net Income (Loss) 5 (835,904) § 131,765 % 255,613

These condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying footnotes of Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries.
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Schedule II — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Citizens Financial Corporation
(Parent Company Only)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Net cash used in operating activities $ (2,208) § (500,793) $ (500,986)
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities - (379,965) (1,353,133)
Sales of available-for-sale securities 211,186 488,925 2,263,880
Investment management fees - - (22,527
Deletions (additions) to property and equipment, net (163,256) 15,896 896,826
Change in investments, other - - 146,516
Net cash provided by investing activities 47,930 124,856 1,931,562
Cash flow from financing activities: ‘
Payments on notes payable — bank (1,166,666) (1,416,666) (1,341,666)
Proceeds from niote payable — related party 1,330,000 1,000,000 -
Repurchases of capital stock (515,341) L. (102,001)
Other financing activities (910) .- -
Net cash used in financing activities (352917) (416,666) (1,443,667)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (307,194) (792,603) (13,091
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 157,870 950,473 963,564
Cash and cash equivalents (book overdraft) at end of year $ (149,324) $ 157,870 % 950,473

These condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying footnotes of Citizens Financial Corpeoration and Subsidiaries.
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Schedule IV - Reinsurance
Citizens Financial Corporation

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

Percentage
Ceded to Assumed of Amount
Gross To Other From Other . Net Assumed
Year Ended December 31 Amount Companies Companies . Amount To Net
2006
|

Life insurance in foroe: $ 678,574,184 § 63,326,000 448816 $' 619,738,000 0.7%

|

Premiums:

Life insurance $ 14013,126 % 881,614 2770 $ ‘ 13,134,282 0.0%
Accident & health insurance 9,297,088 58,403 - I 9238685 0.0%
Total 3 23,310214 § 940,017 2770 $ 22372967 0.0%
|
2005 (As Restated) |

Life insurance in force: 3 711,800,541 § 75,462,000 4825459 3 : 641,173,000 0.8%

Premiums: :

Life insurance, as restated ] 16,820,665 §$ 936,831 8,503 $: 15,892,337 0.1%

Accident & health insurance 9,700,134 §3,283 - L 9,655,851 0.0%

Total $ 26,529,799 $ 990,114 8503 $' 25548,188 0.0%
2004 :

Life insurance in force: $ 732,713,060 $ 84,456,000 5270669 $ 653,528,000 0.8%
Life insurance $ 18,664,201 $ 1,057,827 14956 $. 17,621,330 0.1%
Accident & health insurance 10,507,801 156,722 - I 10,351,079 0.0%
Total 3 29,172,002 % 1,214,549 14956 $' 27,972,409 0.1%
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Board of Directors’ Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company now scheduled for June 14, 2007, and such information is here incorporated by
reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Board of Directors’ Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company now scheduled for June 14, 2007, and such information is here incorporated by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND REILATED STOCKHBOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Board of Directors’ Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company now scheduled for June 14, 2007, and such information is here incorporated by
reference.

ITEM [3. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS
AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Board of Directors’ Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company now scheduled for June 14, 2007, and such information is here incorporated by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Board of Directors’ Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company now scheduled for June 14, 2007, and such information is here incorporated by
reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule II - Condensed Financial Information of RegiStrant ..............ccovevererinviierenieeeeeee e ceeressssesesess 38
Schedule IIT - Supplementary Insurance Information ...t rereseessiscscsneeneness 011
Schedule IV - REINSUFANCE......c.coiiiimiimirere e erceneeseses s et se s e cn e ere s s s st masam e s emeranes 62

All other schedutes for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have
been omitted or the information is presented in the consolidated financial statements or related notes

(c)} Exhibits.
The exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits appearing on page 66.

Pursuant to paragraph (b)(4)(iii) of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, the Company agrées to furnish to the Commission
upon request copies of instruments defining the rights of holders of the Company’s long term debt.




SIGNA

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CITIZENS FINANCIAL CORPORATION

March 30, 2007 By: /s/ Darrell R. Wells
Darrell R. Wells
President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Darrell R, Wells

Darrell R. Wells Director and President March 30, 2007
(principal executive officer)

/s/ Len E. Schweitzer

Len E. Schweitzer Vice President and March 30, 2007
Chief Financial Officer

/s/ John H. Harralson, Jr.

John H. Harralson, Jr. Director March 30, 2007

fsf George A. Turk

George A. Turk Director March 30, 2007

/s/ Thomas G. Ward

Thomas G. Ward Director March 30, 2007

fs/ Margaret A. Wells

Margaret A. Wells Director March 30, 2007
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
(Item 15(c))

The documents listed in the following table are filed as Exhibits in response to Item 15(c). Exhibits listed that are
not filed herewith are incorporated herein by reference.

Exhibit No.

31

32

10.10

10.16

10.18

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.31

10.33

10.35

10.36

21.2

233

Description

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company dated August 12, 1996 (filed as Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Form 10-KSB dated March 31, 1999)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company adopted November 19, 2003 (filed as Exhibit
3.2 to the Company’s Form 10-K dated March 28, 2004)

Provisions of Articles of Incorporation of the Company Defining the Rights of Holders of
Class A Stock (filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Form 10 Registration Statement)

1999 Stock Option Plan (filed as exhibit to the Company’s proxy statement for annual
meceting of shareholders held on May 20, 1999)*

Form of Indemnification Agreements between the Company and its Directors and Executive
Officers and Certain Other Officers (filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Form 10-Q

dated August 11, 2004)*

Settlement Agreement dated as of Ocwober 8, 2004 between James and Naomi Stock,
Plaintiffs, and United Liberty Life Insurance Company, Defendant (filed as Exhibit 10.18 to
the Company’s Form 8-K dated October 8, 2004)*

Executive Employment Agreement dated May 26, 2005 with Michael S. Williams (filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form B-K dated May 26, 2005)*

Executive Employment Agreement dated August 3, 2005 with James H. Knox (filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated August 3, 2005)*

Citizens Financial Corporation Master Cash Bonus Performance Plan dated August 11, 2005
(filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated August 11, 2005)*

Award to James H. Knox dated August 11, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s
Form 8-K dated August 11, 2005)*

Executive Employment Agreement dated August 25, 2005 with Len E. Schweitzer {filed as
Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated August 25, 2005)*

Aircraft Use Agreement dated April 25, 2006 between SMC Advisors, Inc. and the Company
(filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated April 25, 2006)

Executive Employment Agreement dated August 4, 2006 with James T. Helton I1I (filed as
Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated August 4, 2006)*

Executive Employment Agreement dated November 21, 2006 with John D. Comett (filed as
Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated November 21, 2006)*

Second Amended, Consolidated and Restated Promissory Note ($5,330,000) (filed as Exhibit
10.36 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated December 28, 2006)

Subsidiaries of the registrant (filed as Exhibit 21.2 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A dated May
23, 2006)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm {filed herewith)
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Exhibit No.

3Li

12

321

322

Description
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification -- Principal Executive Officer (filed herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d- 14(a) Certification -- Principal Financial Officer (filed herewith)
Section 1350 Centification ~ Principal Executive Officer (filed herewith)

Section 1350 Certification - Principal Financial Officer (filed herewith)

* Management coniract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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EXHIBIT 23.3

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-86519) pertaining to
the Citizens Financial Corporation 1999 Stock Option Plan of our report dated March 26, 2007 with respect to the
consolidated financial statements and schedules of Citizens Financial Corporation included in the Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
March 27, 2007
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Certification for Annual Report on Form 10K

L, Darrell R. Wells, certify that:

H
2)

3)

4)

5)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Citizens Financial Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this annual report,
fatrly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to
materially affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Signature and Title: /s/ Darrell R. Wells Date:  03/30/2007
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Certification for Annual Report on Form 10K

I, Len E. Schweitzer, certify that:

D
2)

3)

4)

5)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Citizens Financial Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
pericd in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to
materially affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Signature and Title: /s/ Len E. Schweitzer Date: 03/30/2007
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

70




EXHIBIT 32.1
Section 1350 Certification -- Principal Executive Officer

Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Citizens Financial Corporation (the
"Company™) for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report”™) I, Darrell R. Wells, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15¢(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

By:  /s/ Darrell R. Wells
Darrell R. Wells
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 30, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this
written statement required by Section 906, has been provided 1o Citizens Financial Corporation and will be retained
by CFC and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The foregoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Form
10-K and shall not be considered filed as part of the Form 10-K.
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EXHIBIT 32.2
Section 1350 Certification -- Principal Financial Officer

Citizens Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Citizens Financial Corporation (the
“Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report™) 1, Len E. Schweitzer, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of
my knowledge:

1.The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

By:  /s/Len E. Schweitzer
Len E. Schweitzer
Vice president and Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 30, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this
written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Citizens Financial Corporation and will be retained
by CFC and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The foregoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Form
10-K and shall not be considered filed as part of the Form 10-K.
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Performance Graph

The graph below compares the five-year cumulative total return, assuming the
reinvestment of dividends, if any, of the Company’s Class A Stock with the Russell 2000 Index
and the Total Return Industry Index for NASDAQ Insurance Stocks, prepared by Center for
Research in Securities Prices. The graph assumes $100 invested at the per share closing price on
December 31, 2001 in each of the Company’s Class A Stock, the Russell 2000 Index and the
Total Return Industry Index for NASDAQ Insurance Stocks. The Company did not pay
dividends during any of these years.

$250 -
™ /
$150 -~ /.
$100
$50 -
$0 T T - T T T 1
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
e CFC  ~=l==Russell -A—N;tsdaq Insumnce J
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Citizens Financial $100.00 $60.61 $104.12 $85.33 $75.76 $77.58
Russell $100.00 $79.52 $117.09 13852 $144 86 $171.47

NASDAQ Insurance  $100.00  $100.78 $124.56 §$146.18 $169.49 $191.64
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COMPANY INFORMATION

General Information

The Company has prepared the consolidated
financial statements of Citizens Financial
Corporation and its subsidiaries. The Company
has responsibility for the financial information
presented and has applied judgment to the
information available, made estimates, and given
due consideration to materiality in preparing the
financial statements and other financial
information in this Annual Report.

The financial statements, in the opinion of the
management, present fairly the financiai position
of Citizens Financial Corporation and its
subsidiaries and the results of their operations,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for the stated dates and periods in conformity
with appropriate generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company’s independent
auditors, Emst & Young LLP, whose report on
their audits is included in this Annual Report,
have audited these financial statements.

The Company maintains accounting systems and
related controls and communicates policies and
procedures designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that the financial records
are reliable for preparing financial statements,
provide appropriate information for management
of the business, and maintain accountability for
assets. Due regard has been given to the
necessary balance between the cost of systems of
internal control and the benefits derived.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
of Citizens Financial Corporation meet annually
in private session with the independent auditors
to review the auditor’s comments on the
Company’s systems and controls.

The Company's Code of Business Ethics and
Conduct is posted on its website.
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Corporate Headquarters

The Marketplace

12910 Shelbyville Road
Louisville, Kentucky 40243
(502) 244-2420

(800) 843-7752

Mailing Address

P.O. Box 436149
Louisville, Kentucky 40253-6149

Internet Website
http://www citizensfinancialcorp.com.
Stock Listing

Exchange: NASDAQ
Symbol: CNFL

Stock Transfer Agent

Stock Trans, Inc.

44 West Lancaster Avenue
Ardmore, Pennsylvania 19003-1385
(800) 733-1121 - Telephone

(610) 649-7302 — Facsimile

Annual Meeting

Shareholders are cordially invited to attend the
Citizens Financial Corporation Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which will be held on Thursday,
June 14, 2007 at 4:00 p.m. at the Marketplace -
3" Floor, 12910 Shelbyville Road, Louisville,
Kentucky.

Corporate Counsel

Whyatt, Tarrant & Combs, LLP
Louisville, Kentucky

Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm

Ernst & Young LLP
Louisville, Kentucky

Shareholders relations

Additional copies of the Form 10-K or other
reports may be obtained without charge upon
written request to Len E. Schweitzer,
Company Secretary, at the mailing address
listed above, Additional copies are also
available at the Company website.




DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

Darrell R. Wells '

Chairman of the Board

General Partner, Security Management Company
Louisville, Kentucky

John H. Harralson, Jr. ?
Editor, ALMAC LLC d/b/a
The Voice Tribune
Louisville, Kentucky

George A. Turk ?

Financial Analyst and Special Projects Manager,
National Underground Railroad Freedom Center
Cincinnati, Ohio

Thomas G, Ward *
President, Third Kentucky Cellular Corporation
Lexington, Kentucky

Margaret A. Wells '
Homemaker and Civic Volunteer
Louisville, Kentucky

I Member of Executive Committee
2 Member of Audit Committee and
Compensation Committee
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OFFICERS

Darrell R. Wells
President and Chief Executive Officer ?
Chairman and Chief Executive QOfficer **

John D. Cornett

Executive Vice President and

Chief Operating Officer *

President and Chief Operating Officer **

Len E. Schweitzer

Vice President, Accounting, Chief Financial
Office, Corporate Secretary and Treasurer *
Senior Vice President, Accounting, Chief
Financial Officer, Corporate Secretary and
Treasurer **

James T. Helton M1
Executive Vice President, Group Products **

Michael 8. Williams

Vice President, Marketing for Life & Health ?
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